
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

1  Regional Transport Authority - 1st August 2019 at 9.30am.  Council Chamber, 
Bridgend County Borough Council.  
 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 CCRTA Meeting 

01st August 2019 

09.30am at the Council Chamber, 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

 

AGENDA 

 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item  

   
1. Welcome & Introductions 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 05th March 2019 
 

 

4. Metro Plus - Common Assessment Framework (CAF) 
 

 

5. Metro Plus Package of Studies Update 
  

 

6. Metro Plus 
 

 

 Close and date of next meeting:-  
13th November 2019 10am  
Bridgend Council Chamber 
 

 

 
 This document is available in Welsh | Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 2



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORT AUTHORITY MEETING:  

05 MARCH 2019 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Regional Cabinet Members Present: 

Cllr Garth Collier    - Blaenau Gwent Council 
Cllr Huw David (Chair)   - Bridgend Council 
Cllr Richard Young    - Bridgend Council 
Cllr Sean Morgan    - Caerphilly Council 
Cllr Caro Wild    - Cardiff Council 
Cllr David Hughes    - Merthyr Tydfil Council 
Cllr Bryan Jones    - Monmouthshire Council 
Cllr Roger Jeavons    - Newport Council 
Cllr Andrew Morgan    -  Rhondda Cynon Taf Council 
 
Officers: 
 
Alun Evans     - Blaenau Gwent Council 
Ellie Fry     - Blaenau Gwent Council 
Kevin Mulcahy    - Bridgend Council 
Alyn Owen     - Merthyr Tydfil Council 
Kellie Beirne     - Cardiff Capital Region Director 
Clare Cameron    - Cardiff Capital Region 
John Gibson     - Cardiff Council 
Richard Cope    - Monmouthshire Council 
Simon Nicholls    - Newport Council 
Chris Bradshaw    - Rhondda Cynon Taf Council 
Roger Waters    - Rhondda Cynon Taf Council 
Michele Mitchell    - Torfaen Council 
Emma Reed     - Vale of Glamorgan Council 
 
Invited Guests: 
 
Geoff Ogden     - Transport for Wales 
Ben Hutchison    - Transport for Wales 
 
Apologies: 
 
Cllr Fiona Cross    - Torfaen Council 
Cllr Geoffrey Cox    -  Vale of Glamorgan Council 
Christian Schmidt    - Monmouthshire Council 
Stephen Jarrett    - Torfaen Council 
Kyle Phillips     - Vale of Glamorgan Council 

Page 3



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

1. Welcome & Introductions 

Cllr David welcomed colleagues to the public meeting and introduced colleagues from 
Transport for Wales who would be providing some update information as indicated on 
the agenda. 
 
2. Declarations of Interest 

Cllr David asked that all Members declare any relevant interests with regard any of the 
agenda items listed for discussion, in accordance with the Members Code of Conduct. 
 
No declarations of interest were made by those present. 
 
3. Transport for Wales – Update and Overview 

In response to a presentation by Geoff Ogden (TfW), the following additional points 
were made:- 

 The presentation is available upon request. 
 Geoff to come back to the RTA concerning priority and implementation 

timescales; there are operational considerations being worked on currently that 
have an effect on timescales. Consideration would also be given to the creation 
of a delivery plan that can be published so the pubic are more informed about 
station improvements, incremental changes, etc. Work would take place with 
the Transport Officers Group to achieve this. 

 TfW and RTA need to work together concerning managing public expectations. 
 There was discussion concerning active travel and taking opportunities to bring 

in more such opportunities ahead of 2023, but has to be more joined up with 
local transport routes. 

 Further consideration would be given to increased aspiration for Park & Ride 
around the region which can be tested as part of the TfW SE Wales Transport 
Model, as well as the issue of availability of public conveniences on some 
routes / trains, with the Transport Officers Group. 

 It was noted that there needed to be further discussion concerning the 
availability of Wi-Fi at some stations and potential issues of anti-social 
behaviour both at stations and on trains themselves. 

 Work is ongoing concerning engagement with SMEs concerning jobs, 
employment and apprenticeships.  

 Kellie referred to transport being an enabler for further aspirational change, 
such as within the energy revolution cluster and electric vehicles and building 
a smarter region, suggesting a discussion with TfW concerning wider City Deal 
plans and driving a new ecosystem together. TfW would welcome that 
discussion. Cllr David asked that these talks begin as soon as possible, 
potentially taking further advantages from existing regional successes such as 
the CSC investment and the new energy catapult in Bridgend. 

Cllr David thanked Geoff for the presentation and positive question and answer 
session from Members and colleagues. 

 

 

Page 4



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

4. Welsh Government / Transport for Wales – Bus Strategy Update 

In response to a presentation by Ben Hutchison (TfW), the following additional points 
were made:- 

 The presentation is available upon request. 
 There was discussion concerning Integrated Responsive Transport (IRT) 

services and a perception that it only works for older users and a younger client 
base would need to be targeted also. It was noted that to be able to book less 
than 24 hours in advance there would need to be more sophisticated software 
in use to give real time information and enable dynamic routing of services. 
Service users also need to be able to search for information on an App, which 
would provide them with the best routes, travel integration and fares available, 
but also give us data to be able to assess travel patterns and provide better 
services to users. There could be trial services in some areas to assess 
demand, but this can take time and would need a three year period for such 
trials and ensure that all commuters can be connected to a Metro service. 

 Colleagues noted that there is a realisation that any legislative aspects would 
take some time, but there is a desire to move forward as Local Authorities have 
powers to act already for some aspects and those decisions should be taken 
locally.  

 It was agreed that significant capital funding is required to transform bus 
infrastructure and bus priority measures, ongoing revenue funding is critical to 
bus service provision. 

 Integrated smart ticketing has been discussed previously and needs to be in 
place as a tap on / tap off service. Agreement needs to be made on the 
technology to be utilised and put in place to allow simplicity of travel, including 
through travel where required. TfW noted there are advanced plans concerning 
ticketing in place which could bring together standard travel and concessionary 
travel card systems. A collaborative approach is being pursued with other 
bodies. 

Cllr David thanked Ben for the presentation and positive question and answer session 
from Members and colleagues. 

5. Improving Transport – White Paper - CCRTA Response 

The Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority (CCRTA) considered a report 
regarding the White Paper – Improving Public Transport – CCRTA Consultation 
Response for consideration and approval. 
 
RESOLVED: it was agreed that the Regional Transport Authority: 
 
i. Approved the submission of the response to WG before the deadline of 27th 

March 2019. 
ii.  Gave delegated powers to the Chair of the CCRTA in consultation with the Vice 

Chair of the CCRTA to revise and finalise the draft response should further 
information become available during the remainder of the consultation period, 
scheduled to end on 27th March 2019. 

 

 

Page 5



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Actions 

 Cllr David asked for an amendment to be made to Appendix A, Question 5, to 
emphasise the role of democratically elected Members who are accountable to 
their communities and spending public monies, so as to include:- 

“The regional JTA will deliver key local and regional infrastructure and services and 
will be democratically accountable to the people that rely on such services. This unique 
accountability must be reflected in the make-up of the board and in the allocation of 
voting rights.  
 
Within a fair, inclusive and consensus-lead approach, the majority view of 
democratically appointed members must be able to prevail in any decision making 
process. The acknowledged step-in rights of the Minister will serve to provide 
assurance to partners and stakeholders.” 
 
This change of wording was agreed by colleagues.  
 
 It was further agreed that the final version of the documentation would be 

circulated prior to submission. 
 It was also noted that individual Councils would also be likely submit responses 

to the consultation. 
 

6. Metro Plus Report Central  - Cardiff Central Station Upgrade 

The Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority (CCRTA) considered a report 
regarding the Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus – Phase 1 – Programme of 
Local ‘Future Mobility’ Schemes for consideration and approval. 
 
RESOLVED: it was agreed that the Regional Transport Authority noted, formally 
supported and endorsed the actions taken by the Joint Cabinet in its meeting on 18th 
February 2019 and which are detailed in the Report at Appendix 1. 
 
Action 

 It was noted that Blaenau Gwent would be pursuing enhanced proposals to 
reflect a more aspirational approach to integrated transport links from Ebbw 
Vale and Abertillery in line with the following; 
 
Provision of new integrated transport links from Abertillery and Ebbw Vale to 
Cardiff and Newport will open up Abertillery, Ebbw Vale, and adjacent Tech 
clusters as part of Tech Valleys development, integrating the benefits across 
Blaenau Gwent; along with the dovetailed Abertillery spur the system will offer 
increased frequency of trains and provide options for citizens choosing public 
transport for work and leisure journeys with the additional benefit of associated 
infrastructure to accommodate vehicle electric charging.  
 
The integrated transport system should provide a vibrant multi-modal 
interchange serving businesses, towns and residents to reduce congestion on 
the roads without eroding economic competitiveness; improve road safety, for 
children, pedestrians and cyclists; reduce the environmental impact of transport 

Page 6



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

in terms of human health, the local environment; and create a more inclusive 
society with improved access for all to goods, services, and employment. 

This approach was noted. 
 

7. Date of next meeting 

It was noted that the date of the next meeting is yet to be agreed but likely to be in the 
summer of 2019. 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 

01st AUGUST 2019 MEETING 
 

 
METRO PLUS - COMMON ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK (CAF) 
 
 

REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION DIRECTOR KELLIE 
BEIRNE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4 

REASON FOR REPORT 

1) A Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus Phase 1 (Programme of 
‘Future Mobility’ Schemes) was agreed in principle by Regional Cabinet on 
18th February 2019. This report therefore seeks to:-  

a) Update Members on the development and application of a Common 
Assessment Framework (CAF), underpinned by the WelTAG and 
Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal Investment & Intervention 
Framework to secure funding and deliver Phase 1 of the Metro Plus 
Programme, as agreed by Joint Cabinet on 18th February 2019; 
 

b) Request that a report be submitted to Regional Cabinet on 09th 
September 2019 to seek approval to adopt the draft CAF as outlined in 
this report and attached as Appendix 1.  

 
BACKGROUND 

2) A Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus Phase 1 (Programme of 
‘Future Mobility’ Schemes) was agreed by Regional Cabinet on 18th February 
2019. This approach established the principle of a programme of activity 
complementing and enhancing the proposed Metro and Metro Central 
investments, known as ‘Metro Plus’. This concept is currently being 
developed and rolled out with the governance, co-ordination and leadership 
support of the Regional Transport Authority.  
 

3) The outline programme for phase one seeks to catalyse the initial concept of 
Metro Plus, highlighting core elements and features which have been 
captured within a common assessment framework (CAF), which is 

Page 9



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

underpinned by the principles of the WelTAG and CCR City Deal Investment 
& Intervention Framework. 

 
4) The assessment (and results) of the City Deal Requirements would be 

incorporated as discrete sub-sections under each of the five case headings 
i.e. Strategic, Transport (or Economic), Financial, Commercial and 
Management.   

 
COMMON ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK (CAF) UPDATE 
 
5) The Common Assessment Framework (CAF) sets out criteria to achieve the 

mission and vision of the CCRCD Metro Plus aspirations and wider 
programme objectives and will take into account all four of the questions as 
identified below. 

 
6) The CAF identifies that the Metro Plus programme should not be viewed as 

individual projects, but rather a programme of enabling infrastructure to 
stimulate economic growth and regeneration across the region, supporting 
the sustainable mobility of people and improving the way people make their 
economic contribution.  

 
7) Key work strands have been completed since February, which suggest: 

a.   That Welsh Government’s WelTAG process provides a robust, tried and 
tested basis on which project business cases can be assessed at regular 
intervals (WelTAG Stages 1-5).  The WelTAG process, will be updated 
to include ‘City Deal Requirements’ (CDRs), which will represent an 
appropriate way forward that could fully comply with the requirements of 
the City Deal Assurance Framework and seek to minimise duplication 
and effort, as it is already a requirement of the Local Transport Funding  
(LTF)  

b.  That the City Deal Requirements associated with Metro Plus projects 
should align with the ‘core aims and objectives’ of the recently approved 
Investment & Intervention Framework (IIF). This could be proportionately 
achieved by assessing projects against the following four key questions:  

  1.     How will the proposed scheme help deliver the vision and objectives 
of the ‘Regional Industrial and Economic Plan?’  

2.     What contribution will the proposed scheme make towards the City 
Deal KPIs of (i) 25,000 jobs, (ii) £4BN Private Sector Leverage and 
(iii) Uplift in GVA (either direct or indirect)? 

3.     How has the scheme been designed to ensure it encapsulates and 
or maximises ‘Economic Inclusion’ within the region? 

Page 10



 

Page 3 of 8 
 

c.  In order to gauge the wider ‘value added’ aspects of Metro Plus 
proposals, a further ‘Programme Level’ assessment could be applied 
which seeks to capture details of any contribution made by individual 
projects towards wider City Deal interventions.  This is referred to as ‘City 
Deal Additionality’ and could be assessed simply by testing each project 
against the following question:           

 4.  Please outline how the scheme has considered wider City Deal 
objectives e.g. Digital, Skills, Energy etc. what ‘value added 
features / additionality’ have been incorporated, which may not 
otherwise have been included within the proposed scheme design? 

8) The assessment of responses to this fourth question could be categorised 
as: 

(i) Minimum requirements; 
(ii) Requirements that must be considered, but may not be progressed; 

and 
(iii) Best practice requirements. 

 
9) Appendix 1 provides the detail of the CAF; to summarise its core components 

and have regard for the requirements of the IIF (as outlined above), plus 
additionally around i) Digital; ii) de-carbonisation iii) electric charging 
infrastructure; iv) skills development; v) enabling broader regeneration. It is 
the intention that the requirements identified within the CAF are incorporated 
into WelTAG briefs, as identified above, so as they become core assessment 
criteria moving forward.  
 

10) Welsh Government is preparing a Metro Enhancement Framework (MEF), 
which is based upon 13 transport corridors, which will assist with prioritising 
transport investment across the region.  It is anticipated that the WelTAG 
process will identify and consider solutions that include all modes of transport 
across the Metro network. Similar to the CAF, the MEF will have criteria 
related to national priorities and strategies and will seek to influence the 
prioritisation of the transport agenda based on a weighted criteria and a 
robust evidence base. WG is supportive that MEF criteria will include and 
complement City Deal priorities along with ensuring that all schemes 
consider the wider goals in relation to climate change, active travel, health 
and any other national and regional policies and strategies. 

 
11) Whilst work is ongoing to complete the proposed CAF, including evaluation 

methodology to enable prioritisation of schemes, one of the main aims of the 
CAF is to embed the ethos of the IIF and additionality criteria into any future 
proposals to form a business case for inclusion into schemes, (or not, should 
the business case not stack up). Therefore, the requirements of the CAF are 
aimed at assisting Local Authorities with their work when preparing briefs for 
WelTAG studies for current Metro Plus proposals.  

Page 11



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

12) City Deal officers are currently working with the individual Local Authorities 
to support and monitor the progress of all of the current Phase 1 Metro Plus 
schemes, and leading on programme aspects with key partners such as 
Transport for Wales around digital strategy and data capture, branding and 
multi-modal ticketing, as well as all of the other identified criteria within the 
CAF to ensure compliance with the CAF, the CCRTA officer group will 
perform the function of a Programme Management Group that peer reviews 
schemes, including all additionality and added value – in line with the 
Common Assessment Framework. This will ensure that schemes comply 
with the City Deal Investment Framework and will allow a suitable reporting 
mechanism to Members to be achievable by capturing all updates on scheme 
progression and compliance through quarterly, comprehensive update 
reports to the CCRTA and then on to Regional Cabinet for noting. 

 
Local Member consultation (where appropriate)  

13) This report is one of a series of updates on programme activity, whereby 
regional engagement will take place. 

Reason for Recommendations 

14) To provide Members with an update on the work done to date. 
 
15) To enable the CAF to be agreed and adopted to ensure that the Metro Plus 

programme complies with the IIF and encourages additionality in terms of 
clean growth.  

 
Financial Implications 

16) The attached report provides an update in respect of the development of a 
‘Common Assessment Framework’ (CAF) which will enable projects to be 
developed in a comprehensive, but streamlined way, initially testing for 
‘strategic fit’ and then progressing through a series of gateways which seek 
to demonstrate the core ‘economic’, ‘deliverability’ and ‘affordability’ aspects 
of each proposed project.  The CAF will facilitate individual proposals coming 
forward for assessment and approval, as soon as they are in a position do 
so, and not be constrained by the ‘pace of the slowest’.   

 
17) In this regard, it is important that the provisions of the WIF Assurance 

Framework are followed, as this is a key requirement of the City Deal Funding 
Terms & Conditions.  At its meeting of the 10th June 2019, Regional Cabinet 
approved its Investment and Intervention Framework (IIF).  The IIF has been 
developed to support the objective and robust evaluation and development 
of proposals, seeking funding from the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal – 
Wider Investment Fund. 

 
18) In-line with the requirements of the Assurance Framework, the IIF will require 

proposals that have passed the ‘Sift Stage’, to be subject to a ‘Proportionate 
Business Case Development Process’ in line with the HM Treasury Green 
Book (5 Case Model).   

Page 12



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 
19) The report outlines the key work that has been progressed following Regional 

Cabinet’s ‘In-Principle’ approval of the Metro Plus Phase 1 Programme in 
February 2019.  In summary, this work has concluded:  

 
 That the CAF will be largely based on Welsh Government’s Weltag 

process, as this is a requirement for Local Transport Funding (LTF) and 
also provides a robust, tried and tested basis on which project business 
cases can be developed and assessed at regular intervals (Weltag 
Stages 1-5).  This will seek to address the Proportionate Business Case 
Development Process referred to above;   

  
 That the format of business cases developed under the Weltag process 

will be updated to include ‘City Deal Requirements’, which will be fully 
aligned to the ‘core aims and objectives’ of the IIF. The CAF 
assessment will seek to assess how proposed Metro Plus projects 
could be designed and configured to maximise delivery against the key 
components of the IIF.  

 
20) Other governance related matters linked to the Metro Plus Phase 1 

Programme are in the process of being developed and are the subject of a 
separate report being considered by the Regional Transport Authority at their 
scheduled meeting of the 1st August 2019. 

 
21) As set out in this report, work is ongoing to finalise these component 

elements of the proposed Common Assessment Framework and associated 
governance requirements and further assessment of the financial 
implications will be made as part of future reports brought forward for 
consideration and approval in due course. 

Legal Implications (including Equality Impact Assessment where appropriate) 

22) As Members will be aware, the Councils established the Cardiff Capital 
Region City Deal ("City Deal") and entered into the joint working agreement 
on 01 March 2017 ("JWA") to formalise their respective roles and 
responsibilities in relation to the City Deal. The JWA includes an Assurance 
Framework, which amongst other matters sets out detail as to how potential 
projects (referred to in the JWA as Candidate schemes) will be appraised.   

 
23) This has further been developed and reference is made to the Overarching 

Funding Agreement and Investment framework approved by Regional 
Cabinet in June 2019. (The Overarching Funding Agreement importantly sets 
out the investment criteria, which will be used to initially assess applications 
at the initial SIFT stage. Applications taken forward for consideration will be 
the subject of detailed due diligence undertaken in accordance with the 
Assurance Framework and the Investment Framework, which framework is 
predicated on a ‘Proportionate Business Case Development Process, which 
is in turn a due diligence process based on the HM Treasury Green Book 
(using the Five case Model) as amended, on a propionate basis to reflect the 
scale, nature and complexity of the relevant application). This point is raised 
because:-    

Page 13



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 

(1)  it is important that all schemes considered by the RTA follow the 
aforementioned process.  

To this end, Legal Services are instructed that the CAF, which forms 
the subject of the report to RTA, is not intended to replace the 
aforementioned process but rather to sit alongside and compliment the 
same. 

(2)  the Welsh Government funding conditions require that schemes must be 
selected  in accordance with the arrangements set out in the JWA and 
Assurance framework. 

24)  As the body of the report notes, the CAF is in draft form and requires further 
consideration. 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
25) The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (‘the Act’) is about 

improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales.  The Act places a ‘well-being duty’ on public bodies aimed at 
achieving 7 national well-being goals for Wales - a Wales that is prosperous, 
resilient, healthier, more equal, has cohesive communities, a vibrant culture 
and thriving Welsh language, and is globally responsible. In discharging their 
respective duties under the Act, each public body listed in the Act (which 
includes the Councils comprising the CCRCD) must set and published well 
being objectives. These objectives will show how each public body will work 
to achieve the vision for Wales set out in the national well being goals.  When 
exercising its functions, the Regional Transport Authority should consider 
how the proposed decision will contribute towards meeting the ‘well 
being duty’ and in so doing assist to achieve the national well being goals. 

 

26) The well being duty also requires Councils to act in accordance with a 
‘sustainable development principle’. This principle requires Councils to act in 
a way which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. Put 
simply, this means that the Regional Transport Authority must take account 
of the impact of their decisions on people living their lives in Wales in the 
future.  In doing so, the Regional Transport Authority must: 

•        Look to the long term  
•        Focus on prevention by understanding the root causes of problems  
•        Deliver an integrated approach to achieving the 7 national well-being 

goals  
•        Work in collaboration with others to find shared sustainable solutions 
•        Involve people from all sections of the community in the decisions which 

affect them. 
 
27) The Regional Transport Authority must be satisfied that the proposed 

decision accords with the principles above. 

Page 14



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

28) To assist the Regional Transport Authority  Cabinet to consider the duties 
under the Act in respect of the  decision sought  an  assessment has been 
undertaken , which is attached as an Appendix to this report  (Wellbeing of 
Future Generations Assessment) for Member’s consideration. 

29) In preparing reports due regard must be given to the Statutory Guidance on 
the Act issued by the Welsh Ministers, which is accessible using the link 
below:  

http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-
act/statutory-guidance/?lang=en  

Equality Act 2010 

30) In considering this matter, regard should be had, amongst other matters, to 
the Councils’ duties under the Equality Act 2010.  Pursuant to these legal 
dutiesthe Regional Transport Authority  must in making decisions have due 
regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful discrimination (2) advance 
equality of opportunity and (3) foster good relations on the basis of protected 
characteristics. Protected characteristics are: 

 Age                 
 Gender reassignment             
 Sex  
 Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality 
 Disability 
 Pregnancy and maternity 
 Marriage and civil partnership 
 Sexual orientation 
 Religion or belief – including lack of belief 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority is recommended to: 

1)   Note progress of the Common Assessment Framework. 

2)   Agree to the request that a report be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Regional Cabinet (anticipated date - 09th September 2019) to seek approval 
to adopt a CAF, based on the draft CAF attached to this report, noting that in 
the interim period the draft CAF will be subject to further amendment 
including, the addition of a scoring mechanism for assessing future 
proposals.  

KELLIE BEIRNE 
CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION DIRECTOR 
01st August 2019 

 

 

Page 15



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

The following Appendices are attached:- 

Appendix 1 – Draft Common Assessment Framework 
Appendix 2 – Wellbeing of Future Generations Evaluation 
 

The following background paper has been taken into account:- 

Cardiff Capital Region Report – “Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus – 
Phase 1 – Programme of Local ‘Future Mobility’ Schemes” – 18th February 2019 
 

 

Page 16



How will the proposed scheme help deliver the vision and objectives of the ‘Regional Industrial and Economic Plan?’ 
What contribution will the proposed scheme make towards the City Deal KPIs of (i) 25,000 jobs, (ii) £4BN Private Sector Leverage and (iii) Uplift in GVA? 

.    How has the scheme been designed to ensure it can maximise ‘Economic Inclusion’ within the region?

Core Criteria  (# 14) Description 

CCRCD Industrial and Economic 

Action Plan Reference Enablers (Support and Projects) Requirement?

Metric ‐ how do you 

measure the business case 

for this? 

Monitoring and Evaluation? 

KPI'S? for CCRCD  (One off 

and Ongoing Monitoring) Evidence?

How does this aspect of your 

scheme contribute to the four 

Grand challenges?

Policy 

Reference (UK 

and WG) 

including WFGA

Policy Target 

Reference?

LTF Application Criteria                

Monitoring requirements TBC

Included in 

the MEF?

CCRCD Programme 
or LA Responsibility 
(Suggested)

Infrastructure Fit for the 

Future 

1

YES: 

Supports AI 

or Digital BOTH CORE

Incorporation or enabling  digital 

infrastructure

Infrastructure Fit for the Future Develop a 

Digital Connectivity Plan to make the 

region one of the most digitally advanced 

in the region

LFFN Funding (Mon, Torfaen, Newport, BG)  £6m to 

connect public sector buildings.   WG LFFN (Wave 3) 

ducting and fibre along the trunk roads ‐ concession 

(Severn bridge to Pontypridd), Ponty to Pembroke funded 

by LFFN  (£32m total)  Smart roads.

Engage with City Deal 

Office to understand digital 

infrastructure required

1 to 12 rule, for every £1 invested, 

£12 will be added to the local 

economy.  Regen / Digital 

Colleagues should be able to help.

Passive Infrastructure ducting built 

into scheme linking to local chamber.  

Digital strategy?  KPI's around 

installation, sensors etc?  JO Installed ducting 

Welsh Government 

Digital Action Plan 

2017 ‐ 2020

How can LTF be drawn 

down for M&T (as currently 

retrospective application 

once monies spent) ‐ WG 

conversation 

Build resilient communities, culture and 

language � Deliver modern and connected 

infrastructure � Promote and protect 

Wales’ place in the world 

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Develop 

organisational and data infrastructure and 

capacity within the public sector to 

embrace the challenge led approach 

through a public service testbed

2

Partially, but 

MEF 

indicator is 

linked to 

distance to 

train station 

rather than 

utilising 

digital  BOTH

CORE (More work to be done by CCRCD 

at the programme level)

Getting people onto the metro ‐  linkages, 

reliability, reassurance ‐ roadside signs ‐ 

Realtime travel info facilitated by digital

Infrastructure Fit for the Future Work with 

WG to improve the transport network

Review with TfW re their communication plans etc. Links 

back to digital infrastructure. Who will own data?  Data 

Cymru? Link to commitments in regional contract 

Welsh Government 

Digital Action Plan 

2017 ‐ 2020

3 NO LA CORE

Decarbonisation ‐ consideration of 

renewable or carbon neutral energy supply 

to or on site infrastructure

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Utilities 

networks e.g. LEV

Energy Mission, WGES ‐ asking for LEV infrastructure to be 

supplied by green supply as a minimum.   Also a review of 

renewable energy.

homes England ‐ to improve 

infrastructure etc to open 

up sites.

4 YES  LA CORE

Incorporation of LEV infrastructure, active 

or passive, into all Metro+ Sites (supplied 

by green energy supply as minimum and / 

or renewables)

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Utilities 

networks e.g. LEV Energy Mission, WGES, Cenex, OLEV

What's the business case for LEV?  

What indicators are used to justify? 

EG Air emissions  Energy Mission

5 NO BOTH CORE

Engagement with the bus companies and 

taxi's to ensure infrastructure meets their 

current and future needs

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Utilities 

networks e.g. LEV

LEV charging for example, for longer journeys ‐ for tourism? 

Charging mini‐buses, community transport etc.  (CCRCD) 

School vehicles? Bus workshop Energy Mission

6 NO BOTH CORE

Promotion of LEV infrastructure and public 

transport options

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Utilities 

networks e.g. LEV

LA and CCRCD to promote ‐ programme promotion strategy 

(CCRCD)

7 NO LA CORE

Connectivity and accessibility of Schemes 

and facilities for; buses, cars, active travel, 

bike scheme 

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Embrace 

the Metro as a backbone to connecting 

CCR and shaping places on it's network

LA's should be engaging with bus companies etc.   To 

ensure there's a maximum 400m distance to walking and 

buses linked to train timetables etcExamples?  TfW? Toilet 

plan?

400m walking distance to 

infrastructure (bus, rail, etc)

8 YES LA CORE  

Wider area; Mobility links to health 

facilities, tourism and local landmarks by 

any modal transport 

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Embrace 

the Metro as a backbone to connecting 

CCR and shaping places on it's network

LOCAL AUTHORITY RESPONSIBILITY?  LSB responsibility?   

Could link into the local wellbeing plan and active travel 

strategies?

Reliable and frequent travel to the 

surrounding area e.g. regular buses linked 

to trains arrival/departure times etc. Taxi's, 

car clubs, building confidence in the public 

transport network

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Utilities 

networks e.g. LEV

LOCAL AUTHORITY RESPONSIBILITY?  PROMOTION of LEV 

infrastructure and public transport options TO THE RIGHT 

DEMOGRAPHIC

CCRCD Programme in 

partnership with TfW

CONSIDERED (More work to be done 

by CCRCD)

Sensoring for monitoring and evaluation 

and ticketing; TfW

Infrastructure Fit for the Future Develop a 

Digital Connectivity Plan to make the 

region one of the most digitally advanced 

in the region

Digital mission has been prepared by not signed off, and 

more liaison with TfW

,

Quality etc?  SE Wales 

Transport model? ‐ can 

include economic benefits / 

houses TfW tool to assess 

� pp y g p p

most of their potential  � Build ambition 

and encourage learning for life � Equip 

everyone with the right skills for a 

changing world  

CCRCD Programme in 

partnership with TfW

CONSIDERED (More work to be done 

by CCRCD) Multi‐modal ticketing

Infrastructure Fit for the Future Work with 

WG to improve the transport network

TfW?   Lisaise with TfW to find out latest on this.   FREE BUS 

PASS / CONCESSION / INTEGRATED TICKETING  FREE BUS 

PASS / CONCESSION / INTEGRATED TICKETING FOR 

YOUNGER GENERATION TO ENABLE MOBILITY

CCRCD Programme in 

partnership with TfW

CONSIDERED (More work to be done 

by CCRCD)  Skills for data capture/management

Training available in the region.  Skills 

framework  ADD IN i&r Action Plan 

reference 

Engage with regional skills partnership via City Dal Ofice & 

TfW 

Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Embrace 

the Metro as a backbone to connecting 

CCR and shaping places on it's network

How are the LA's going to promote their schemes? Option 

to access LTF for this.  How will the scheme open up the 

local region eg for tourism?  Merthyr Zip Wire links, access 

to the brecon beacons? 

NO BOTH

NICE TO HAVE (More work to be done 

by CCRCD)

Two way charging / battery energy release 

infrastructure / Car Clubs / Review of 

renewable and battery storage 

opportunities 

Opportunity for Challenge fund + foundational economy to 
upskill the private sector in Wales to deliver solar linked 
LEV and energy storage infrastructure?  

NO

CCRCD Programme in 

partnership with TfW

NICE TO HAVE (More work to be done 

by CCRCD)

Infrastructure e.g. smart lighting and 

sensors.  
Infrastructure Fit for the Future  Utilities 

networks e.g. LEV

NO but out 

of scope CVL only

CONSIDERED (More work to be done 

by CCRCD) 

Riding sunbeams; Electrification of the CVL 

utilising renewable energy

LA land assets nearby CVL that could accommodate 

renewable energy

Skills of the Future
Exceeding procurement 

requirements?

most of their potential  � Build ambition 

and encourage learning for life � Equip 

9 NO LA CORE

Skills at the design and delivery 

(procurement) phase

Skills of the Future Increase apprentices in 

growth sectors  (EG Pontypool and New 

Inn Park and Ride)

What are the minimum requirements anyway?  How far 

should these be exceeded?  

Stats on job creation, 

training and skills

10 NO

CCRCD Programme in 

partnership with TfW

CORE  (More work to be done by 

CCRCD on this at the programme level) Scheme design and impression ‐ iconic? 

Infrastructure Fit for the Future Embrace 

the Metro as a backbone to connecting 

CCR and shaping places on it's network TfW will have set design ‐ branded.

11 NO LA/TfW CORE 

Services provided at the station/hub, 

meeting the needs of travellers or 

commuters?

Skills of the Future Service the needs of 

our priority sectors

Toilets, ageing populations, safety, well‐lit, engagement 

with existing businesses / incoming businesses on the back 

of the station upgrade.

LA/CCRCD CONSIDERED Upskilling /re‐training of the over 50's

Introduction:  The Common Assessment Framework (CAF) sets out mechanisms to achieve the mission and vision of the CCRCD programme, in the first instance Metro+.  Metro+ is a programme of 10 accelerated schemes to kick off a wider metro programme aimed at providing the infrastructure and backbone to deliver regeneration and economic uplift across 

the Cardiff Capital Region.  The vision is that Metro+ schemes should not be viewed as individual transport schemes but rather a programme of enabling infrastructure to stimulate economic growth and regeneration of the region, supporting the sustainable mobility of people and skills and leveraging wider economic growth.  The CAF will be used to assess 

schemes contribution to the goals of the CCRCD. 

As part of the self assessment, organisations will be asked to detail against each criteria how their scheme contributes to the Grand Challenges; AI and Data Economy, Clean Growth, Ageing Society, Future of Mobility.

APPENDIX 1

P
age 17



Businesses that succeed

12 YES LA CORE 

Wider area; regeneration, practical mobility 

links to housing and strategic job areas, 

facilitating partnerships between 

residential and economic areas

Infrastructure Fit for the Future Develop 

proposals for energy efficient and 

accessible housing

Requirement ‐ link to your local wellbeing plan ‐ what 

makes this scheme stand out ‐ list of consultees for the 

CAF?  Giving guidance on types of stats we want specific 

to the locality.   CITY DEAL OFFICE to follow up with WFGA? 

13 Partial LA CORE

Appraisal of local opportunity to support 

and link to the key sectors identified in the 

CCRCD Industrial and Economic Plan

Infrastructure Fit for the Future Develop a 

series of strategic employment spaces 

across the region

Strategic housing fund (CCRCD) Demonstration  of job 

creation, links to both priority sectors, tourism 

opportunities. 

14 NO BOTH

CORE  (More work to be done by 

CCRCD on this at the programme level)

Promotion of the scheme and improved 

mobility with local businesses, HE providers 

etc.

Skills of the Future Work with current 

schools, colleges, Uni and private providers 

to nurture home grown talent 

CITY DEAL OFFICE  CAN ENGAGE TO SUPPORT 

OPPORTUNITIES AT THE LOCAL LEVEL EG V2C guides?  Links 

to employment sites?  Traineships for people who have 

come through care.

YES LA CONSIDERED 

Local provision of skills (Universities, HE, 

ETC) and links to local business 

CCRCD Programme in 

partnership with TfW

CONSIDERED (More work to be done 

by CCRCD)

Opportunity for upskilling the installation of 

LEV + renewables sector 

Businesses that succeed Transport 

Engineering

Foundational Economy funding / challenge? Pontypool and 

New Inn 

P
age 18



Well‐being Goals Description  5 Ways of Working 

A prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which 

recognises the limits of the global environment and therefore 

uses resources efficiently and proportionately (including acting 

on climate change); and which develops a skilled and well‐

educated population in an economy which generates wealth 

and provides employment opportunities, allowing people to 

take advantage of the wealth generated through securing 

decent work.

Long Term ‐ The importance of balancing 

short‐term needs with the need to safeguard 

the ability to also meet long‐term needs.

A resilient Wales 

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural 

environment with healthy functioning ecosystems that support 

social, economic and ecological resilience and the capacity to 

adapt to change (for example climate change).

Prevention ‐ How acting to prevent problems 

occurring or getting worse may help public 

bodies meet their objectives.

A healthier Wales 

A society in which people’s physical and mental well‐being is 

maximised and in which choices and behaviours that benefit 

future health are understood. 

Integration ‐ Considering how the public 

body’s well‐being objectives may impact 

upon each of the well‐being goals, on their 

other objectives, or on the objectives of other 

public bodies.

A more equal Wales 

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter 

what their background or circumstances  (including their socio 

economic background and circumstances).

Collaboration ‐ Acting in collaboration with 

any other person (or different parts of the 

body itself) that could help the body to meet 

its well‐being objectives.

A Wales of Cohesive Communities  Attractive, viable, safe and well‐connected communities

Involvement ‐ The importance of involving 

people with an interest in achieving the well‐

being goals, and ensuring that those people 

reflect the diversity of the area which the 

body serves

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and 

thriving Welsh Language

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the 

Welsh language, and which encourages people to participate in 

the arts, and sports and recreation

A globally responsible Wales 

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the 

economic, social, environmental and cultural well‐being of 

Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may make 

a positive contribution to global well‐being

P
age 19



Name of the Officer completing the evaluation: 

Clare Cameron 

Phone no: 07976 708539 
E-mail: clare.cameron@cardiff.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal 

Update Members on the development and application of a Common 
Assessment Framework (CAF), underpinned by the WelTAG and 
Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal Investment & Intervention 
Framework to secure funding and deliver Phase 1 of the Metro Plus 
Programme, as agreed by Joint Cabinet on 18th February 2019. 

Proposal: Metro Plus - Common Assessment Framework Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed: 25 July 2019 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

Providing a Common Assessment Framework to 
ensure Metro Plus schemes align with City Deal and 
the targets set around GVA, jobs and leverage – is 
our key means of securing greater prosperity. 
Managing progress in this way contributes to a 
growing sense of self awareness. 

Proposals to improve progress against each of the 
projects currently in progress – are set out in the 
report. This report seeks to address the actions 
needed to drive delivery. 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g. climate 
change) 

New infrastructure and enhancement of provision 
will open up journey alternatives for commuters, 
business users and leisure users. Instead of 
automatically undertaking a journey by car, the 
Metro Plus Programme will promote and provide an 
alternative thereby encouraging modal shift to public 
transport for a range of journey types.  

This activity will be driven up in future. In addition as 
physical infrastructure schemes enter delivery – 
more comprehensive assessments will need to be 
carried out in full.  

Future Generations Assessment 

APPENDIX 2

P
age 20



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

This could help to reduce the number of car journeys 
undertaken, helping to reduce congestion and 
improve other environmental factors such as an 
improvement in air quality.  

The development of new transport schemes which 
can utilise new technologies such as electronic 
charging points and electronic vehicles etc within its 
operation and design will also allow formation of new 
industries to supply these services. A report 
prepared by Cenex demonstrates the need for a 
Programme of Electric Vehicle Infrastructure within 
the Programme and has proposed the level of 
infrastructure likely to be required up to 2030. The 
delivery of this programme will seek to expand on 
this provision for the region as a whole, which will 
help combat climate change.  

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 
 

A potential reduction in car trips may make the roads 
safer, thus opening them up for more Active Travel 
journey opportunities. There is also likely to be 
growth in active travel journeys undertaken to 
interchanges to access the Metro Plus Programme 
of schemes.  

The potential to increase  active travel journeys 
could have associated health benefits leading to cost 
savings across a range of health service provisions 
(a 2012 meta-analysis estimated physical inactivity 
to be responsible for 5.3 million (of 57 million) deaths 
worldwide, similar to the burden of tobacco smoking 
and obesity11).  

 

P
age 21



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

There can also be economic benefits for the region 
from increasing active travel. It has been quoted in a 
recent report by the ‘Transport Fit for Future 
Generations Report’ that ‘expanding the investment 
programme in Active Travel out to the whole Cardiff 
Capital Region would cost approx. £290 million but 
would result in economic benefits of £2.5bn over 20 
years, delivering a 19% and 82% increase in walking 
and cycling trips respectively’.  

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected 
 

The programme will greatly assist in providing the 
right infrastructure to improve connectivity by means 
of good transport links. Those schemes where new 
links or improvements in corridors are to be 
implemented are likely to have the largest benefit for 
example, Abertillery Interchange. 

 All of the combined improvements in interchanges, 
Park and Ride and bus priority will assist in creating 
a seamless network allowing ease of transfer 
between modes. This will facilitate ease of access 
for communities across south east Wales, for those 
with and without access to a private car thereby 
improving connectivity to a range of services. 

The Metro Plus Programme will also improve 
connectivity to the South Wales Metro, permitting 
regional connectivity throughout south east Wales 
and further beyond.  

Currently most travel-to-work trips into Cardiff are 
made by car (58%), while the proportion of 
sustainable travel-to work trips diminishes with the 

A greater contribution will be made to this by the 
aforementioned data capability, sectoral analysis 
and place assessments. 

P
age 22



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

distance of commuting. The Metro Plus Programme 
provides an alternative for access into areas such as 
Cardiff from all areas of south east Wales helping to 
facilitate modal shift. This could lead to journey time 
savings on the road network across south east 
Wales helping businesses and promoting economic 
development. Journey time savings could also be 
achieved for users of the public transport network, 
as the Metro Plus Programme promotes the co-
locating of modes via seamless interchanges. 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 
 

The Metro Plus Programme includes investment 
across the whole of south east Wales and it will 
improve the quality of the region as a whole. 
Therefore it is likely to encourage new inward 
investment as businesses have access to a wide 
pool of potential resources that can easily travel 
around the region and wider, to access new job and 
training opportunities.  

Develop the legacy impact of the event, sustaining 
new connections, sharing great practice and 
potentially securing propositions and deals that 
support economic growth. 

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation 
 

Providing new and improved sustainable transport 
infrastructure across the Region will help increase 
the means of access to sport and recreation.  

All signage will be bilingual and buses are already 
equipped with AudioVisual (AV) for those vehicles 
younger than 2012 to enable them to deliver 
bilingual messaging. 

 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 

City Deal is about delivering as far as possible 
across 10 LAs and a population of 1.5m people. It is 

 

P
age 23



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

 about economic gains – but importantly how this will 
convert as tools for improving people’s lives.  

The programme will support a more productive 
economy through an increase in access to the South 
Wales transport network. This will allow for 
individual, households, public sector and business to 
grasp new opportunities, from the improved access 
provided by new and improved transport options.  

Transport improvements that improve access 
throughout the south east Wales region will help 
increase the skills base of the labour market, 
through providing means of access to new 
educational, employment, healthcare and training 
opportunities.  

The Metro Plus Programme will deliver direct 
transport improvements into those areas where 
evidence shows high rates of claiming job seekers 
allowance, allowing access to sustainable public 
transport for those seeking employment, increasing 
their chance of gaining employment through access 
to wider employment markets. This will increase 
their personal prosperity and the economic 
prosperity of the area within which they live as they 
spend their income on local goods and services. 

 

 

 

P
age 24



2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritized the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Balancing short term 
need with long term 
and planning for the 
future 

The Common Assessment Framework for the Metro Plus 
Programme, assists Government with delivering on the four 
Grand Challenges within the UK Industrial Strategy - Future 
of Mobility; Artificial Intelligence and Big Data; Clean 
Growth and Meeting the Needs of an Ageing Society. 

Being a programme that is focused on the provision and 
improvement of sustainable transport, it helps in particular 
to achieve the goals of a ‘globally responsible Wales’, ‘A 
Wales of cohesive communities’, ‘a healthier Wales’ and ‘a 
prosperous Wales’. 

The Metro Plus Programme will provide increase network 
capacity, providing new and improved transport facilities, 
increasing capacity at interchanges across the rail network 
along with providing new capacity along transport corridors 
such as between Newport and Cardiff and the Abertillery to 
Ebbw Valley Railway line. 

In developing the programme long terms trends have been 
analysed. For example, the need to provide for electric 
powered vehicles at all sites with the programme has been 
investigated. A separate report produced by Cenex has 
considered how electric vehicle charging can be provided, 
what type of provision is required and the operating model 
for implementation. The Metro Plus programme also looks 
to address future trends such as population increases and 
decreases, providing increased public transport capacity 
and helping to prevent out-migration from some 
communities through improved access.  

 

P
age 25



Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Working together 
with other partners to 
deliver objectives  

TheCommon Assessment Framework has been considered 
for the Metro Plus Programme which has been formed 
through collaborative working by ten local authorities 
(Caerphilly CBC, Cardiff CC, Bridgend CBC, Newport CC, 
Vale of Glamorgan Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, 
Merthyr Tydfil CBC, Monmouthshire CC, Torfaen CBC, 
Blaenau Gwent CBC). The Well-being objectives of each of 
the local 
authorities have been considered when developing the 
programme.  

The inclusion of EV Charging is also supported by WG and 
work has been undertaken by Cenex to assess the demand 
up to 2030 at the locations identified.  

Public consultation will take place through the WelTAG 
process as each scheme develops through the WelTAG 
stages, and, as the proposal includes all schemes 
identified within individual LA LDPs, the public will have 
been made aware of the proposals and would have 
already had an opportunity through the LDP consultation 
process to consider the principle of individual schemes. 

Involving those with 
an interest and 
seeking their views 

The Metro Plus Programme has been formed through 
collaborative working by ten local authorities (Caerphilly 
CBC, Cardiff CC, Bridgend CBC, Newport CC, Vale of 
Glamorgan Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC, Monmouthshire CC, Torfaen CBC, Blaenau 
Gwent CBC). The Well-being objectives of each of the local 
authorities have been considered when developing the 
programme.  

Cenex were commissioned to consider EV Charging to be 
included within the Programme and to assess likely 
demand up to 2030.  

REDSTART were commissioned to appraise the 
Programme, and the is working with TfW to develop the 
Programme and ensure that the proposal fits with TfW’s 
vision and Metro Programme. 

More needs to be done to develop engagement platforms 
– beyond formal partnerships – to reach communities, 
hard to reach groups and those who currently have a 
limited understanding of City Deal. Improving social 
media, web presence and marketing materials will 
increasingly make a contribution to this. 
The RTA will ensure that all partners are included whilst 
delivering the Programme. 

P
age 26



Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Putting resources 
into preventing 
problems occurring 
or getting worse 

The Metro Plus Programme is designed to prevent further 
environmental damage from transport through the 
promotion and development of a sustainable transport 
network and the Common Assessment Framework criteria 
will help achieve this.  

Population in some communities is projected to decline 
(such as some valleys communities, where younger 
members of the community leave to seek job opportunities 
in larger towns and cities). The Metro Plus Programme 
linking into the wider Metro network will provide an effective 
transport system, connecting major towns and cities across 
Wales for those communities where population is declining. 
This may permit people to stay within the community within 
which they have grown up, commuting to and from 
employment as an efficient transport network is available, 
rather than needing to relocate to seek employment. 

This will be an increasing focus of scheme and 
programme delivery. 

Considering impact 
on all wellbeing 
goals together and 
on other bodies 

The Metro Plus Programme has been developed with 
consideration to a wide range of contextual factors. 
Strategic fit of the programme has been considered along 
with a number of other wider issues such as carbon 
reduction.  

In terms of the programme impact on local authority 
wellbeing goals, a positive impact can be seen.  In 
particular the Metro Plus Programme will help to achieve 
goals that aim to tackle poverty and deprivation, improve 
access to skills, improve employment opportunities and 
provide improved infrastructure and healthier communities. 

 

 
 

P
age 27



3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 
evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Age The Common Assessment Framework for 

the Metro Plus Programme will help to 
achieve goals that aim to tackle poverty and 
deprivation, improve access to skills, 
improve employment opportunities and 
provide improved infrastructure and 
healthier communities for all characteristics 
as all infrastructure included within the 
projects will be designed in accordance with 
current inclusive design.  

None arising at this time.  

Disability As above As above  

Gender 
reassignment 

As above As above  

Marriage or civil 
partnership 

As above As above  

Pregnancy or 
maternity 

As above   

Race As above   

Religion or Belief As above   

P
age 28



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Sex As above  .  

Sexual Orientation As above   

 

Welsh Language 

As above Not at this time but the situation will be 
kept under review. 

 

 
4. Safeguarding & Corporate Parenting.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?   
 
 Describe any positive impacts your 

proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  Not directly relevant –however, building the 
future economy should have a profoundly 
positive impact on ability to safeguard the 
future of our residents 

  

Corporate Parenting  Not directly relevant – however building 
strength in the economy should create 
opportunities for all of the young people 
entrusted in our care 

  

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

• Evidence and input contributed by theme leads 
• Outcomes of assessments such as audit reports 
• Delivery against targets set out in individual business cases/ approved project documentation  

P
age 29



 
6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 

they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 
 

The areas requiring attention and focus are set out and follow-up actions will be assessed and monitored ongoing through the quarterly reporting mechanism. . 

 
7. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 

evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review. 
 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  Delivery of additionality and measurements identified within the 
Investment and Infrastructure Framework 

 

 

 P
age 30



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 

01st AUGUST 2019 MEETING 
 

 
METRO PLUS PACKAGE OF STUDIES UPDATE 
 
 

REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION DIRECTOR KELLIE 
BEIRNE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

REASON FOR REPORT 

1) A Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus Phase 1 (Programme of 
‘Future Mobility’ Schemes) was agreed in principle by Regional Cabinet on 
18th February 2019. This report therefore seeks to provide an update on 
progress with the package of studies commissioned to support the Metro 
Plus programme on Low Emission Vehicles, Income Infrastructure Modelling 
and LEV Taxi scheme. 

 
BACKGROUND 

2) A Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus Phase 1 (Programme of 
‘Future Mobility’ Schemes) was agreed by Regional Cabinet on 18th February 
2019. This approach established the principle of a programme of activity 
complementing and enhancing the proposed Metro and Metro Central 
investments, which has been badged as ‘Metro Plus’. This concept is 
currently being developed and rolled out with the governance, co-ordination 
and leadership support of the Regional Transport Authority.  

 
3) The outline programme for phase one seeks to catalyse the initial concept of 

Metro Plus, highlighting core elements and features which have been 
captured within a common assessment framework (CAF), which is 
underpinned by the principles of the WelTAG and five-stage business case 
model. 

 
4) Further research has been undertaken to explore and identify 

complementary innovative transport led regeneration opportunities and 
planning across the region through the development of a Low Emission 

Page 31



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Vehicle Strategy, Infrastructure Income Modelling and a plan to provide 
electric charging infrastructure, which will include facilities for taxis. 
 

Progress on Low Emission Vehicles Studies and Renewables 

5) Urban Foresight was engaged by the five Gwent Local Authorities and PSBs 
to carry out a feasibility study for on-street EV charge points and have since 
been engaged by City Deal to extend this commission to the other five LAs 
within City Deal to ensure a regional approach to delivery of on-street EV 
infrastructure. The outcomes include: 

 
 Reviewing the feasibility of installing charge points at locations identified 

by the PSBs; 
 Determine locations which should be eligible for funding for OLEV On-

street Residential Charge point Scheme and Workplace Charging 
Scheme; 

 Recommend a package of locations to be included to apply for these 
funds; 

 Provide a prioritisation of other sites based on their delivery feasibility, 
potential for high use and contribution, to regional network connectivity; 
and 

 Recommend next steps in relation to delivery of a regional network and 
developing a commercial network model. 

 
6) The Gwent study is complete. The study for the rest of the LAs within the City 

Region is due to be completed shortly. Any co-investment required will be 
subject to the principles of the Investment Framework. Cenex, (an 
independent not-for-profit consultancy specialising in the delivery of projects, 
supporting innovation and market development, focused on low carbon 
vehicles and associated energy infrastructure) was appointed in 2018 to 
prepare and review the 10 Metro Plus schemes and recommend the level of 
Low Emission Vehicle (LEV) infrastructure that should be installed at each 
site.  This report is being utilised by the local authorities to incorporate LEV 
infrastructure and inform WeITAG studies.  
 

7) Cenex is now completing three further pieces of work; 
 
1. Infrastructure income modelling (Draft report received) 
The draft infrastructure income modelling study is being reviewed and will be 
brought back to a future meeting. Early indications show they have 
considered four operating models including Own and Operate, Lease, 
Concession and External Operator. They are currently recommending the 
concessionaire model is taken forward for further planning. In addition to the 
strong financial performance, there are four reasons to opt for this approach 
as follows:- 
 
 It gives the procuring authority significant control over the locations of 

new installations.  
 There is value in retaining ownership of the groundworks and cabling, 

as it makes it easier to transfer to a new concessionaire. 

Page 32



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 It reduces risk to the host authority by transferring it to the 
concessionaire and mitigates the need for on-going funding for 
network maintenance and development. 

 It can be used to leverage private sector investment to grow the 
network. 

 
2. Low Emission Vehicle Strategy (including bus and freight)  
This report is due to be complete by early November 2019 although Cenex 
is proposing to accelerate this timescale by a few weeks. Workshops have 
recently been delivered for Freight and bus operators, which will inform the 
recommendations. Technologies, best practice and current policies and 
strategies have already been considered and analysis is to be carried out 
during July and August, with strategy and policy being considered for low, 
medium and high scenarios. The findings of the study will form part of a future 
report in the autumn. 
 
3. LEV Taxi Strategy  
The Taxi Strategy is due to be completed in draft by the end of July 2019. 
Early indications show that the region is in a good starting place in terms of 
current taxi fleet where the average age is 8 years and younger. Three 
options are being considered, including moving to Euro 6 fleet, Hybrid and 
pure Electric. Whilst Euro 6 is easier to achieve and has a more instant effect 
on emissions, this is short lived and the early recommendation is to move 
towards pure electric immediately as although it takes longer, it has a bigger 
and more final impact on reducing emissions. The half way hybrid option is 
being ruled out on overall cost grounds. Recommendations may include a 
similar option to Leeds CC who are going to be offering options of a £2k grant 
towards the cost of an EV or a £10k interest free loan option. Further 
information will be brought to Members once the report has been finalised. 

OLEV / EV Charging Infrastructure Investment Fund / Renewable Energy 
 

8) Office of Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV) funding for On-street Residential 
Charge point Scheme and Workplace Charging Scheme is a 70% grant to 
the maximum value of £7,500 per location to provide EV infrastructure that 
meets the criteria for on-street and workplace locations. The maximum 
amount available to any LA is £100k. It is anticipated that this funding will 
cease being offered at the end of March 2020. As advised above, the Gwent 
LAs have already undertaken a study and have identified potential locations. 
It is up to the Gwent authorities to locate the match funding required should 
they believe there is a viable business case. 
 

9) Zouk Capital is an infrastructure and private equity fund manager, appointed 
to manage the UK Government’s Charging Infrastructure Investment Fund 
(CIIF). The CIIF is a £400m investment fund – £200m raised from the private 
sector matched by the £200m from the UK Government. The fund was 
announced in the Autumn Budget 2017 amongst a package of measures 
aimed at helping to increase the uptake of electric vehicles (EVs) in the UK.  

 

Page 33



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

10) Increased adoption of EVs will play a pivotal role in both the decarbonisation 
of the UK’s transport sector and much needed improvement in air quality as 
well as ensuring the UK continues as a global leader in the EV revolution. 
The fund will be invested in UK companies and platforms that comprise all 
elements of public EV charging infrastructure in order to make a commercial 
return for the UK Government and private sector investors. Subject to 
negotiations, it is expected that the fund will launch in spring 2019. 

 
11) WG has requested that TfW put forward all of the railway stations in Wales 

(~250) as locations for LEV charging infrastructure and identify a supplier, 
using the concessionaire model to supply and manage all EV at these sites. 
They are considering options to work with Zouk Capital to deliver this 
infrastructure. Following the work carried out by both Urban Foresight and 
Cenex, it could be possible for all City Region locations identified from the 
studies, to be included in the WG commission. Whilst it might be the case 
that not all locations will be attractive – it is envisaged that a package could 
be put together. If this option is taken, it is understood that the private sector 
would provide the infrastructure with the public sector providing the locations 
and facilitating grid connection for no cost. The model would include a share 
of profits only once the locations become profitable. It is likely that some 
public sector funding would be necessary for connecting to the grid. 
Discussions are ongoing and a further report will be brought back to 
Members once these discussions are at a more advanced stage. 

 
12) In light of the recent climate change emergency announcements and a strong 

decarbonisation policy supported by the Environment Act, renewable energy 
and zero carbon energy supply is a key consideration in development of the 
Metro Plus schemes. 

 
13) Each Metro Plus scheme is considering opportunities for renewable energy 

on an individual basis including ensuring EV infrastructure is supplied by a 
renewable energy supply. The Carbon Trust, through Welsh Government 
Energy service, are able to offer a free service to consider the cost of 
renewables at specific locations and have already considered the 
implications for the Pontypool and New Inn scheme to incorporate solar car 
ports. 

 
14) Cardiff Council have made significant progress in terms of LEV infrastructure 

and are already delivering on-street infrastructure at 15 locations, providing 
30 no. 7kw charging points at various locations within Cardiff. They tendered 
and awarded a contract to Swarco to manage the infrastructure for the next 
three years. There are potential opportunities to work collaboratively, to 
procure a partner who could provide an upfront infrastructure investment and 
build, and recover investment and management costs through an EV 
charging revenue stream. Detailed consideration is required as to the form  
such procurement could take, including; the requisite bodies that wish to be 
a part of any such collaborate procurement would need to make such 
decision to join the procurement, as would the body leading the procurement, 
the parties respective contributions would need to be determined (for 

Page 34



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

example land / sites allocated could be provided by the Council and other 
Partners) and how the  proposed contract should be  structured (for example 
the contract could operate under a profit share arrangement with the Councils 
once initial investment costs are repaid). Any update on this will be brought 
to a future meeting.  

Local Member consultation (where appropriate)  

15) This report is one of a series of updates on programme activity, whereby 
regional engagement will take place. 
 

Reason for Recommendations 

16) To update Members on progress to date. 
 
Financial Implications 

17) The attached report seeks to provide the Regional Transport Authority with 
an update on a package of studies commissioned to support the Metro Plus 
programme. The 2019/20 approved City Deal Top-Slice budget (Regional 
Bodies) contains sufficient resources to cover the cost of the studies outlined 
in this report. Updates on actual expenditure incurred will form part of the 
regular quarterly budget monitoring reports to the Regional Cabinet. 
 

18) In respect of any potential procurements referred to in the report, any 
financial implications arising will need to be considered as part of the 
appropriate decision making process for those bodies that may be involved 
in any such arrangements.     

 
Legal Implications (including Equality Impact Assessment where appropriate) 

19) This report is submitted to update members on the matters raised. As 
individual projects are developed, appropriate legal and other profession 
advice should be taken. 
 

20) The report refers to potential procurements. Detailed legal advice should 
be sought on any proposed procurement, which must be carried out in 
accordance with legal requirements. To the extent the procurements involve 
other bodies, then arrangements will need to be agreed between the parties 
as to how the procurement will be run, the proposed contract structured and 
as to the respective parties contributions. Further, each party will need to 
make the requisite decision, in accordance with its own decision making 
rules, to be a party to any such collaborative procurement   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
21) The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (‘the Act’) is about 

improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales.  The Act places a ‘well-being duty’ on public bodies aimed at 
achieving 7 national well-being goals for Wales - a Wales that is prosperous, 
resilient, healthier, more equal, has cohesive communities, a vibrant culture 
and thriving Welsh language, and is globally responsible. In discharging their 
respective duties under the Act, each public body listed in the Act (which 
includes the Councils comprising the CCRCD) must set and published well 
being objectives. These objectives will show how each public body will work 
to achieve the vision for Wales set out in the national well being goals.  When 
exercising its functions, the Regional Transport Authority should consider 
how the proposed decision will contribute towards meeting the ‘well 
being duty’ and in so doing assist to achieve the national well being goals. 

 

22) The well being duty also requires Councils to act in accordance with a 
‘sustainable development principle’. This principle requires Councils to act in 
a way which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. Put 
simply, this means that the Regional Transport Authority must take account 
of the impact of their decisions on people living their lives in Wales in the 
future.  In doing so, the Regional Transport Authority must: 

•        Look to the long term  
•        Focus on prevention by understanding the root causes of problems  
•        Deliver an integrated approach to achieving the 7 national well-being 

goals  
•        Work in collaboration with others to find shared sustainable solutions 
•        Involve people from all sections of the community in the decisions which 

affect them. 
 
23) The Regional Transport Authority must be satisfied that the proposed 

decision accords with the principles above. 

24) To assist the Regional Transport Authority  Cabinet to consider the duties 
under the Act in respect of the  decision sought  an  assessment has been 
undertaken , which is attached as an Appendix to this report  (Well –being of 
future generations assessment) for Member’s consideration. 

25) In preparing reports due regard must be given to the Statutory Guidance on 
the Act issued by the Welsh Ministers, which is accessible using the link 
below:  

http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-
act/statutory-guidance/?lang=en  

Equality Act 2010 

26) In considering this matter, regard should be had, amongst other matters, to 
the Councils’ duties under the Equality Act 2010.  Pursuant to these legal 

Page 36



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

dutiesthe Regional Transport Authority  must in making decisions have due 
regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful discrimination (2) advance 
equality of opportunity and (3) foster good relations on the basis of protected 
characteristics. Protected characteristics are: 

 Age                 
 Gender reassignment             
 Sex  
 Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality 
 Disability 
 Pregnancy and maternity 
 Marriage and civil partnership 
 Sexual orientation 
 Religion or belief – including lack of belief 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority is recommended to note progress to 
date on the Low Emission Vehicles (LEV) Studies being carried out and the initial 
findings for each.  

 
KELLIE BEIRNE 
CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION DIRECTOR 
01st August 2019 

 

The following Appendix is attached:- 

Appendix 1 – Wellbeing of Future Generations Evaluation 
 

The following background papers have been taken into account:- 

Cardiff Capital Region Report – “Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus – 
Phase 1 – Programme of Local ‘Future Mobility’ Schemes” – 18th February 2019 
 

 

Page 37



Name of the Officer completing the evaluation: 

Clare Cameron 

Phone no: 07976 708539 
E-mail: clare.cameron@cardiff.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal 

A Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus Phase 1 (Programme of 
‘Future Mobility’ Schemes) was agreed in principle by Regional Cabinet 
on 18th February 2019. This report therefore seeks to provide an update 
on progress with the package of studies commissioned to support the 
Metro Plus programme on Low Emission Vehicles, Income 
Infrastructure Modelling and LEV Taxi scheme. 

Proposal: Metro Plus Package of Studies Update Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed: 25 July 2019 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

Setting up Governance arrangements around 
progress of Metro Plus schemes within City Deal 
and the targets set around GVA, jobs and leverage – 
is our key means of securing greater prosperity. 
Managing & reporting progress in this way 
contributes to a growing sense of self awareness. 

Proposals to improve progress against each of the 
projects currently in progress – are set out in the 
report. This report does not seek to simply report 
progress – but to address the actions needed to 
drive it. 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g. climate 
change) 

New infrastructure and enhancement of provision 
will open up journey alternatives for commuters, 
business users and leisure users. Instead of 
automatically undertaking a journey by car, the 
Metro Plus Programme will promote and provide an 

This activity will be driven up in future. In addition as 
physical infrastructure schemes enter delivery – 
more comprehensive assessments will need to be 
carried out in full.  

Future Generations Assessment 

APPENDIX 1

P
age 38



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

alternative thereby encouraging modal shift to public 
transport for a range of journey types.  

This could help to reduce the number of car journeys 
undertaken, helping to reduce congestion and 
improve other environmental factors such as an 
improvement in air quality.  

The development of new transport schemes which 
can utilise new technologies such as electronic 
charging points and electronic vehicles etc within its 
operation and design will also allow formation of new 
industries to supply these services. A report 
prepared by Cenex demonstrates the need for a 
Programme of Electric Vehicle Infrastructure within 
the Programme and has proposed the level of 
infrastructure likely to be required up to 2030. The 
delivery of this programme will seek to expand on 
this provision for the region as a whole, which will 
help combat climate change.  

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 
 

A potential reduction in car trips may make the roads 
safer, thus opening them up for more Active Travel 
journey opportunities. There is also likely to be 
growth in active travel journeys undertaken to 
interchanges to access the Metro Plus Programme 
of schemes.  

The potential to increase  active travel journeys 
could have associated health benefits leading to cost 
savings across a range of health service provisions 
(a 2012 meta-analysis estimated physical inactivity 
to be responsible for 5.3 million (of 57 million) deaths 

 

P
age 39



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

worldwide, similar to the burden of tobacco smoking 
and obesity11).  

There can also be economic benefits for the region 
from increasing active travel. It has been quoted in a 
recent report by the ‘Transport Fit for Future 
Generations Report’ that ‘expanding the investment 
programme in Active Travel out to the whole Cardiff 
Capital Region would cost approx. £290 million but 
would result in economic benefits of £2.5bn over 20 
years, delivering a 19% and 82% increase in walking 
and cycling trips respectively’.  

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected 
 

The programme will greatly assist in providing the 
right infrastructure to improve connectivity by means 
of good transport links. Those schemes where new 
links or improvements in corridors are to be 
implemented are likely to have the largest benefit for 
example, Abertillery Interchange. 

 All of the combined improvements in interchanges, 
Park and Ride and bus priority will assist in creating 
a seamless network allowing ease of transfer 
between modes. This will facilitate ease of access 
for communities across south east Wales, for those 
with and without access to a private car thereby 
improving connectivity to a range of services. 

The Metro Plus Programme will also improve 
connectivity to the South Wales Metro, permitting 
regional connectivity throughout south east Wales 
and further beyond.  

A greater contribution will be made to this by the 
aforementioned data capability, sectoral analysis 
and place assessments. 

P
age 40



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Currently most travel-to-work trips into Cardiff are 
made by car (58%), while the proportion of 
sustainable travel-to work trips diminishes with the 
distance of commuting. The Metro Plus Programme 
provides an alternative for access into areas such as 
Cardiff from all areas of south east Wales helping to 
facilitate modal shift. This could lead to journey time 
savings on the road network across south east 
Wales helping businesses and promoting economic 
development. Journey time savings could also be 
achieved for users of the public transport network, 
as the Metro Plus Programme promotes the co-
locating of modes via seamless interchanges. 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 
 

The Metro Plus Programme includes investment 
across the whole of south east Wales and it will 
improve the quality of the region as a whole. 
Therefore it is likely to encourage new inward 
investment as businesses have access to a wide 
pool of potential resources that can easily travel 
around the region and wider, to access new job and 
training opportunities.  

Develop the legacy impact of the event, sustaining 
new connections, sharing great practice and 
potentially securing propositions and deals that 
support economic growth. 

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation 
 

Providing new and improved sustainable transport 
infrastructure across the Region will help increase 
the means of access to sport and recreation.  

All signage will be bilingual and buses are already 
equipped with AudioVisual (AV) for those vehicles 
younger than 2012 to enable them to deliver 
bilingual messaging. 

 

P
age 41



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 
 

City Deal is about delivering as far as possible 
across 10 LAs and a population of 1.5m people. It is 
about economic gains – but importantly how this will 
convert as tools for improving people’s lives.  

The programme will support a more productive 
economy through an increase in access to the South 
Wales transport network. This will allow for 
individual, households, public sector and business to 
grasp new opportunities, from the improved access 
provided by new and improved transport options.  

Transport improvements that improve access 
throughout the south east Wales region will help 
increase the skills base of the labour market, 
through providing means of access to new 
educational, employment, healthcare and training 
opportunities.  

The Metro Plus Programme will deliver direct 
transport improvements into those areas where 
evidence shows high rates of claiming job seekers 
allowance, allowing access to sustainable public 
transport for those seeking employment, increasing 
their chance of gaining employment through access 
to wider employment markets. This will increase 
their personal prosperity and the economic 
prosperity of the area within which they live as they 
spend their income on local goods and services. 

 

 

 

P
age 42



2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritized the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Balancing short term 
need with long term 
and planning for the 
future 

The Metro Plus Programme assists Government with 
delivering on the four Grand Challenges within the UK 
Industrial Strategy - Future of Mobility; Artificial Intelligence 
and Big Data; Clean Growth and Meeting the Needs of an 
Ageing Society. 

Being a programme that is focused on the provision and 
improvement of sustainable transport, it helps in particular 
to achieve the goals of a ‘globally responsible Wales’, ‘A 
Wales of cohesive communities’, ‘a healthier Wales’ and ‘a 
prosperous Wales’. 

The Metro Plus Programme will provide increase network 
capacity, providing new and improved transport facilities, 
increasing capacity at interchanges across the rail network 
along with providing new capacity along transport corridors 
such as between Newport and Cardiff and the Abertillery to 
Ebbw Valley Railway line. 

In developing the programme long terms trends have been 
analysed. For example, the need to provide for electric 
powered vehicles at all sites with the programme has been 
investigated. A separate report produced by Cenex has 
considered how electric vehicle charging can be provided, 
what type of provision is required and the operating model 
for implementation. The Metro Plus programme also looks 
to address future trends such as population increases and 
decreases, providing increased public transport capacity 
and helping to prevent out-migration from some 
communities through improved access.  

 

P
age 43



Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Working together 
with other partners to 
deliver objectives  

The Metro Plus Programme has been formed through 
collaborative working by ten local authorities (Caerphilly 
CBC, Cardiff CC, Bridgend CBC, Newport CC, Vale of 
Glamorgan Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC, Monmouthshire CC, Torfaen CBC, Blaenau 
Gwent CBC). The Well-being objectives of each of the local 
authorities have been considered when developing the 
programme.  

The inclusion of EV Charging is also supported by WG and 
work has been undertaken by Cenex to assess the demand 
up to 2030 at the locations identified.  

Public consultation will take place through the WelTAG 
process as each scheme develops through the WelTAG 
stages, and, as the proposal includes all schemes 
identified within individual LA LDPs, the public will have 
been made aware of the proposals and would have 
already had an opportunity through the LDP consultation 
process to consider the principle of individual schemes. 

Involving those with 
an interest and 
seeking their views 

The Metro Plus Programme has been formed through 
collaborative working by ten local authorities (Caerphilly 
CBC, Cardiff CC, Bridgend CBC, Newport CC, Vale of 
Glamorgan Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC, Monmouthshire CC, Torfaen CBC, Blaenau 
Gwent CBC). The Well-being objectives of each of the local 
authorities have been considered when developing the 
programme.  

Cenex were commissioned to consider EV Charging to be 
included within the Programme and to assess likely 
demand up to 2030.  

REDSTART were commissioned to appraise the 
Programme, and the is working with TfW to develop the 
Programme and ensure that the proposal fits with TfW’s 
vision and Metro Programme. 

 

More needs to be done to develop engagement platforms 
– beyond formal partnerships – to reach communities, 
hard to reach groups and those who currently have a 
limited understanding of City Deal. Improving social 
media, web presence and marketing materials will 
increasingly make a contribution to this. 
The RTA will ensure that all partners are included whilst 
delivering the Programme. 

P
age 44



Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Putting resources 
into preventing 
problems occurring 
or getting worse 

The Metro Plus Programme is designed to prevent further 
environmental damage from transport through the 
promotion and development of a sustainable transport 
network.  

Population in some communities is projected to decline 
(such as some valleys communities, where younger 
members of the community leave to seek job opportunities 
in larger towns and cities). The Metro Plus Programme 
linking into the wider Metro network will provide an effective 
transport system, connecting major towns and cities across 
Wales for those communities where population is declining. 
This may permit people to stay within the community within 
which they have grown up, commuting to and from 
employment as an efficient transport network is available, 
rather than needing to relocate to seek employment. 

This will be an increasing focus of scheme and 
programme delivery. 

Considering impact 
on all wellbeing 
goals together and 
on other bodies 

The Metro Plus Programme has been developed with 
consideration to a wide range of contextual factors. 
Strategic fit of the programme has been considered along 
with a number of other wider issues such as carbon 
reduction.  

In terms of the programme impact on local authority 
wellbeing goals, a positive impact can be seen.  In 
particular the Metro Plus Programme will help to achieve 
goals that aim to tackle poverty and deprivation, improve 
access to skills, improve employment opportunities and 
provide improved infrastructure and healthier communities. 

 

 
 
 

P
age 45



3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 
evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Age The Metro Plus Programme will help to 

achieve goals that aim to tackle poverty and 
deprivation, improve access to skills, 
improve employment opportunities and 
provide improved infrastructure and 
healthier communities for all characteristics 
as all infrastructure included within the 
projects will be designed in accordance with 
current inclusive design.  

None arising at this time.  

Disability As above As above  

Gender 
reassignment 

As above As above  

Marriage or civil 
partnership 

As above As above  

Pregnancy or 
maternity 

As above   

Race As above   

Religion or Belief As above   

P
age 46



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Sex As above  .  

Sexual Orientation As above   

 

Welsh Language 

As above Not at this time but the situation will be 
kept under review. 

 

 
4. Safeguarding & Corporate Parenting.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?   
 
 Describe any positive impacts your 

proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  Not directly relevant –however, building the 
future economy should have a profoundly 
positive impact on ability to safeguard the 
future of our residents 

  

Corporate Parenting  Not directly relevant – however building 
strength in the economy should create 
opportunities for all of the young people 
entrusted in our care 

  

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

• Evidence and input contributed by theme leads 
• Outcomes of assessments such as audit reports 
• Delivery against targets set out in individual business cases/ approved project documentation  

P
age 47



6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 

 
The areas requiring attention and focus are set out and follow-up actions will be assessed and monitored ongoing through the quarterly reporting mechanism. . 

 
7. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 

evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review. 
 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  Delivery of schemes  

 

 

 

P
age 48



 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 
01st AUGUST 2019 MEETING 
 

 
METRO PLUS  
 
 

REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION DIRECTOR KELLIE 
BEIRNE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

REASON FOR REPORT 

1) To provide members with an update on the strategic programme of the 10 
‘Future Mobility’ Metro Plus Phase 1 projects that were approved in principle 
by Regional Cabinet on 18th February 2019.  

 
2) The report will provide background and clarity to the current governance 

arrangements along with seeking specific approval from Regional Cabinet for 
delegated authority to be given to the Regional Transport Authority (RTA) to 
make decisions on the designated Metro Plus programme City Deal budget 
of up to £15m.  

BACKGROUND 

3) A Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus Phase 1 (Programme of 
‘Future Mobility’ Schemes) was agreed by Regional Cabinet on 18th February 
2019. This approach established the principle of a programme of activity 
complementing and enhancing the proposed Metro and Metro Central 
investments, which has been badged as ‘Metro Plus’. This concept is 
currently being developed and rolled out with the governance, co-ordination 
and leadership support of the RTA.  

 
4) The outline programme for phase 1 seeks to catalyse the initial concept of 

Metro Plus, highlighting core elements and features which have been 
captured within a common assessment framework (CAF), which is 
underpinned by the principles of the WelTAG and five-stage business case 
model. Details of the CAF are included in a separate report. 

 

Page 49



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

5) Further research has been undertaken to explore and identify 
complementary innovative transport led regeneration opportunities and 
planning across the region through the development of a Low Emission 
Vehicle Strategy, Infrastructure Income Modelling and a plan to provide 
electric charging infrastructure which will include facilities for taxis. Details of 
this work are also included in a separate report. 

 
6) The Capital Region submitted a bid to the Welsh Government Local 

Transport Fund (LTF) on 18 January 2019, to provide a co-investment 
mechanism for meeting a proportion of the costs for the Phase 1 proposal. 
 

PROGRESS TO DATE 

7) Positive feedback was received from WG with regards to the LTF bid.  
Merthyr CBC are acting as lead Authority and has been notified that the 
region has secured £3.5m of investment for 2019/20. This is a shortfall of 
£700k from the requested application, and dialogue and negotiations have 
commenced to bridge the gap. To coordinate delivery and maximise 
opportunity, programme management of the funds will be overseen through 
the Regional Transport Authority and the Officer working group, which will 
align to Merthyr’s internal governance arrangements for overseeing the 
drawdown of the grant. 

 
8) Metro Plus (Phase 1) is a programme of 10 transport related schemes which 

are, or are intended to be part of the wider metro infrastructure. Metro Plus 
schemes should not be viewed as individual projects, but rather a programme 
of enabling infrastructure, to stimulate economic growth and regeneration 
across the region, supporting the sustainable mobility of people, and 
improving the way people make their economic contribution.   

 
9) The initial schemes that make up the programme are:- 

 
a) Pontypool and New Inn Park and Ride 
b) Severn Tunnel Junction Park and Ride 
c) Pyle Park and Ride 
d) Pentrebach Interchange 
e) Porth Transport Interchange 
f) Abertillery Transport Hub 
g) Caerphilly Interchange 
h) Barry Docks Interchange 
i) Cardiff East Bus Priority 
j) Newport to Cardiff Transport Priority 
 

10) An overview of progress on each scheme and delivery timescales is 
presented in a summary spreadsheet in Appendix A.  There are potentially 5 
schemes that could accelerate activity to enter the Investment Framework 
and draw down City Deal funding this financial year. These are: 

Page 50



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

a) Cardiff BRT; 
b) Pontypool and New Inn Park & Ride; 
c) Porth Interchange; 
d) Severn Tunnel Park & Ride; and 
e) Barry Docks Interchange. 

 
COMMON ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK (CAF) 
 
11) The CAF sets out criteria to achieve the mission and vision of the CCRCD 

Metro Plus aspirations and wider programme objectives. 
 
12) In-depth detail of the CAF is subject to a separate report. To summarise, its 

core components have regard for additionally around i) Digital; ii) de-
carbonisation iii) electric charging infrastructure; iv) skills development; and 
v) enabling / opening access for broader regeneration. Discussions are 
taking place with WG and TfW to incorporate these principles into WelTAG 
briefs so as they become core assessment criteria moving forward.  

  
OVERVIEW OF GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS  
 
13) The terms of reference (ToR) for the RTA were approved by CCRCD 

Regional Cabinet at its meeting of 20.11.17 and for ease of reference a copy 
of the report is attached as Appendix B to this report. 

 

14) As stated in the ToR the RTA shall not have any delegated decision making 
powers unless expressly granted by the Regional Cabinet.  
 

15) Decision-making will be in accordance with the ToR. For delegated matters 
- as per the Regional Cabinet, decisions will be taken by majority vote; for 
avoidance of doubt each of the ten constituent Local Authorities is entitled to 
one vote only and it is agreed that the Chairperson shall not exercise his or 
her casting vote. 

16) It is recommended that Regional Cabinet be requested to amend the 
Regional Transport Authority’s Terms of Reference (under the paragraph 
headed ‘Functions’) to include the following additional functions and 
delegated authority :- 
 
[A]  Delegate authority to the Regional Transport Authority (‘RTA’) to make 

decisions as regards:- 
 

(1)  the allocation of City Deal monies to individual  Metro Plus projects 
within the envelop of the approved budget of  up to £15m and  

(2)  all associated matters required to facilitate the implementation of the 
Metro  Plus Projects  within the envelop of the approved budget of 
up to £15m; 

Page 51



 

Page 4 of 10 
 

[B]  Delegate authority to the City Deal Programme Director in consultation 
with the Chair of the RTA (or in his absence the Vice Chair of the RTA) 
and the Accountable Body S151 Officer to authorise spend on individual 
approved Metro Plus projects up the sum approved by the RTA in respect 
of the Metro Plus project  concerned  (pursuant to the above delegation) 
and to deal with all associated matters required to facilitate the 
implementation of the Metro Plus Project PROVIDED Always that in 
exercising any delegated powers all decisions made should:- 

(i)  consider the broader aims and objectives of the Common 
Assessment Framework (once approved) 

(ii)  be made in accordance with the requirements of the Joint working 
Agreement in relation to the delivery of the Cardiff Capital Region 
City Deal   

(iii)   be within  approved budgets and comply with any legal  requirement 
and    

(iv)  a full record (report) of the exercise of such powers shall be kept by 
the City Deal Programme Director in respect of each decision taken 
and  update reports provided to the RTA  outlining decisions taken.  

 
17) The RTA will provide an annual performance report to the Regional Cabinet 

outlining activity and spend, along with a plan for future work considerations 
including the next phase of the Metro Plus. 

 
18) The below image provides an overview of the Governance structure for the 

RTA. 

Page 52



 

Page 5 of 10 
 

19) Merthyr CBC are the financial host of the £3.5m LTF on behalf of the 10 local 
authorities in the region.  Merthyr CBC is in the process of funding a Project 
Management post to manage the LTF and has circulated a draft Service 
Level Agreement to all Local Authorities.  

 
20) Merthyr CBC will be responsible for reporting quarterly to WG on the LTF 

spend. Alongside this, it is essential that a robust monitoring of the progress 
of schemes to enable the drawdown of city deal funds is in place. The two 
will need to strongly align. 

 
21) The CCRTA officer group, which includes City Deal representation, will 

perform the function of Programme Management Group that peer reviews 
schemes, including all additionality and added value – in line with the CAF. 
This will enable a monitoring and evaluating mechanism for compliance with 
the Investment Framework and to ensure that a suitable reporting 
mechanism to Members is achievable. Any reports provided to the CCRTA 
will then be captured in an update report to Regional Cabinet for noting. 

 
22) Metro Plus Phase 1 is the first phase of activity as part of a wider programme 

and it is necessary to ensure that future phases come forward in a timely 
manner. With this in mind, approval is also being sought for the Programme 

CCR Transport 
Authority

•CCR RTA, in respect of the CCRCD functions, lead the delivery of the transport vision for the 
region and this outline strategy represents a key step towards its realisation. The RTA will have 
delegated responsibility for the approval of CCRCD funded transport related inititives in respect 
of Metro Plus  and in  accordance with the ToR & the JWA.

RTA Officers 
Group

•Metro Plus Programme Board 

•RTA Officers Group (10 LA + CD Rep, WG Rep; & chaired by LA Senior Officer) This group will act as 
the Metro Plus Programme Board with clear Terms of Reference to review schemes against the 
JWA Assurance frameowrk processes and  CCRCD Additionality Criteria. This group will also be 
responsible for horizon scanning new transport related opportunities. Will meet monthly. 

Local 
Authoriity

• Local Authority Internal Project Board which will include representatives from WG LTF.   

• Each Local Authority will also have a project sponsor and project manager for their own project. 

Merthyr CBC 
Project 
Manager

•Merthyr Programme Management including quarterly reporting to WG. 

•The RTA Officers Group will act as the project board and will meet every month.  Merthyr officers 
will prepare quarterly reports to WG for thr LTF spend which will include aspects of the Metro Plus 
programme.  The 10 Individual Authorities will invoice Merthyr for works completed, Merthyr will 
then draw down funding monthly from Welsh Government to allocate out to the Local Authorities. 
This will be agreed via a Service Level Agreement (SLA) for the LTF funding.

Welsh Govt. 
LTF Fund

•Review of progress reports, attendance at individual Local Authority project board meetings.

Page 53



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

Management group to carry out future work to inform the next phases of the 
CCRCD programme, and use any available feasibility funding to progress 
such evidence based future proposals. 

 
Local Member consultation (where appropriate)  

 
23) All Members would have been consulted through their local mechanisms for 

local project approval and support. This report is the first in a series of 
updates on programme activity, whereby regional engagement will take 
place. 

 
Reason for Recommendations 

24) To ensure that schemes are considered and managed in accordance with 
relevant transport policies, the City Deal Investment and Infrastructure Plan 
and the CAF within an appropriate timescale. 
 

25) To enable schemes to be delivered in a timely manner. 
 

26) To enable a forward work programme of projects that deliver City Deal 
objectives as agreed within the JWA. 

 
Financial Implications 

27) The attached report provides an update in respect of the Metro Plus Phase 
1 Programme of projects. In addition, the report seeks the necessary 
delegations in respect of the proposed governance arrangements that will 
oversee project assessment, development and approval, including the 
allocation of City Deal funding. 

        
28) In February 2019, Regional Cabinet gave an In-Principle approval to the 

Metro Plus Phase 1 – a programme of 10 projects with an anticipated value 
of £50 million and with a proposed funding package consisting of: 

  
 £15 million Welsh Government Local Transport Fund (LTF);  
 £15 million City Deal;  
 £20 million funded locally by each partnering local authority 

      
29) The Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal 5 year Business Plan contains 

capital and revenue funding allocations in respect of the WIF over the 
medium term.  There are sufficient uncommitted resources available within 
the plan at this time, to meet the City Deal funding requirement outlined 
above. 

    
30) In terms of programme co-ordination and delivery, it is understood that the 

former will be managed by Merthyr County Borough Council, as the 
nominated Lead Authority responsible for managing the LTF funding 
package on behalf of the Welsh Government.  Metro Plus project 
development, delivery and operationalisation will be the responsibility of each 

Page 54



 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Local Authority, detailed arrangements for which will be determined as part 
of the Weltag process (business case development process). 

 
31) The City Deal Office base budget contains an element of resources that have 

been allocated to carry out governance related functions in respect of the 
City Deal funding stream earmarked for the Metro Plus Phase 1 Programme.  
As outlined in the attached report, work is ongoing in this area and further 
details in this respect will be provided as part of a future report. 

            
32) Members of the Regional Transport Authority (RTA) will note that the City 

Deal funding of up to £15 million earmarked by Regional Cabinet is on an In-
Principle basis, subject to the approval of the Common Assessment 
Framework (CAF). In addition, the Metro Plus Phase 1 Programme of 
projects will need to be assessed as part of the CCR City Deal Investment & 
Intervention Framework, which was approved by Cabinet in June 2019.  An 
update on the status of the CAF is the subject of a separate report to the 
Regional Transport Authority, scheduled for its meeting of the 1st August 
2019. 

     
33) The report’s Recommendations seek a number of delegations in respect of 

the City Deal funding earmarked for the Metro Plus Phase 1 Programme.  
The governance arrangements that are finalised in this respect will need to 
ensure that appropriate safeguards are put in place to manage any risk 
exposure associated with schemes which have multiple funding streams i.e. 
‘funding deliverability risk’. 

 
34) In this regard, the governance arrangements may require that the release of 

City Deal funding is contingent upon all other scheme funding approvals 
being approved and in place, prior to the release of City Deal monies.  This 
would minimise the risk of a ‘funding gap’ arising, once City Deal monies 
have been allocated, released or expended.  For example, the attached 
report outlines that the 2019/20 LTF approval received from Welsh 
Government is £3.5 million, however, this represents a shortfall of £0.7 
million against the sum requested.  The report outlines that dialogue and 
negotiations have commenced to bridge the gap, but as yet, it is unclear 
whether any resolutions have been identified or agreed.     

 
35) As set out in this report, work is ongoing to finalise these component 

elements of the proposed Common Assessment Framework and associated 
governance requirements and further details will be brought back for 
consideration and approval in due course.  Where requests are made to carry 
out any broader work on the next phase of Metro schemes, then any approval 
will need consider whether it gives rise to any financial implications and how 
these are to be met.  

Legal Implications (including Equality Impact Assessment where appropriate) 

36) The report to Regional Cabinet of 20.11.17 (attached as Appendix B to this 
report) sets out the background to the creation of the Regional Transport 

Page 55



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Authority (‘RTA’) and details the RTA’s terms reference, including the 
functions currently delegated to it. It is a matter for Regional Cabinet to 
determine, which of its functions it wishes to delegate to the RTA. This 
report  is therefore structured such that it requests the Regional Cabinet 
to  delegate further powers to the RTA (and to an officer),  in respect of the 
allocation of City Deal monies for  Metro Plus  Projects and to make ancillary 
decisions in respect thereof. The RTA should take appropriate legal and 
other professional advice in respect of any proposed decision it wishes to 
make as regards matters delegated to it. 

 
37) The report refers to other elements of funding that may be relied upon to fund 

the schemes proposed, including Welsh Government’s Local Transport 
Fund (‘LTF’) and Capital contributions from Councils. As will be appreciated, 
decisions as regards the allocation of such third party funding will be a matter 
for the bodies concerned and to be taken in accordance with their respective 
decision-making processes. Put another way such functions cannot be 
delegated to the RTA. 

 
38) The body of the report refers to a governance structure and makes reference 

to a number of officer groups (Metro Plus Project Board). Legal Services are 
instructed that these officer groups will not be decision-making groups and 
no further delegation of decision making to such groups is sought. 

 
39) As regards the LTF it will be a matter for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 

Council (as the lead bid authority) and the Councils concerned to agree 
appropriate arrangements as regards decision making in respect of the LFT 
secured. 

 
40) To the extent that any decision of the RTA  as regards Metro Plus projects is 

dependent upon third party funding (LFT contribution, Council contributions 
or otherwise) then it should be  ensured that such funding is secured and can 
be used for the purpose intended prior to any City Deal commitment being 
made .  

 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
41) The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (‘the Act’) is about 

improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales.  The Act places a ‘well-being duty’ on public bodies aimed at 
achieving 7 national well-being goals for Wales - a Wales that is prosperous, 
resilient, healthier, more equal, has cohesive communities, a vibrant culture 
and thriving Welsh language, and is globally responsible. In discharging their 
respective duties under the Act, each public body listed in the Act (which 
includes the Councils comprising the CCRCD) must set and published well 
being objectives. These objectives will show how each public body will work 
to achieve the vision for Wales set out in the national well being goals.  When 
exercising its functions, the Regional Transport Authority should consider 
how the proposed decision will contribute towards meeting the ‘well 
being duty’ and in so doing assist to achieve the national well being goals. 

 

42) The well being duty also requires Councils to act in accordance with a 
‘sustainable development principle’. This principle requires Councils to act in 

Page 56



 

Page 9 of 10 
 

a way which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. Put 
simply, this means that the Regional Transport Authority must take account 
of the impact of their decisions on people living their lives in Wales in the 
future.  In doing so, the Regional Transport Authority must: 

•        Look to the long term  
•        Focus on prevention by understanding the root causes of problems  
•        Deliver an integrated approach to achieving the 7 national well-being 

goals  
•        Work in collaboration with others to find shared sustainable solutions 
•        Involve people from all sections of the community in the decisions which 

affect them. 
 
43) The Regional Transport Authority must be satisfied that the proposed 

decision accords with the principles above. 

44) To assist the Regional Transport Authority  Cabinet to consider the duties 
under the Act in respect of the  decision sought  an  assessment has been 
undertaken , which is attached as an Appendix to this report  (Well –being of 
future generations assessment) for Member’s consideration. 

45) In preparing reports due regard must be given to the Statutory Guidance on 
the Act issued by the Welsh Ministers, which is accessible using the link 
below:  

http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-
act/statutory-guidance/?lang=en  

Equality Act 2010 

46) In considering this matter, regard should be had, amongst other matters, to 
the Councils’ duties under the Equality Act 2010.  Pursuant to these legal 
dutiesthe Regional Transport Authority  must in making decisions have due 
regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful discrimination (2) advance 
equality of opportunity and (3) foster good relations on the basis of protected 
characteristics. Protected characteristics are: 

 Age                 
 Gender reassignment             
 Sex  
 Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality 
 Disability 
 Pregnancy and maternity 
 Marriage and civil partnership 
 Sexual orientation 
 Religion or belief – including lack of belief 

 

 
 
 

Page 57



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Regional Cabinet be requested to amend the Regional 
Transport Authority’s Terms of Reference (under the paragraph headed  
‘Functions’) to include the following additional functions  and delegated authority :- 
 
[A]  Delegate authority to the Regional Transport Authority (‘RTA’) to make 

decisions as regards:- 

(1)   the allocation of City Deal monies to individual  Metro Plus projects 
within the envelop of the approved budget of  up to £15m and  

(2)  all associated matters required to facilitate the implementation of the 
Metro  Plus Projects  within the envelop of the approved budget of up 
to £15m; 

 
[B]   Delegate authority to the City Deal Programme Director in consultation with   

the Chair of the RTA (or in his absence the Vice Chair of the RTA) and the 
Accountable Body S151 Officer to authorise spend on individual approved 
Metro Plus projects  up the sum approved by the RTA in respect of the Metro 
Plus project concerned (pursuant to the above delegation) and to deal with 
all associated matters required to facilitate the implementation of the Metro  
Plus Project PROVIDED Always that in exercising any delegated powers all 
decisions made should:- 
 
(i) consider the broader aims and objectives of the Common Assessment 

framework 
(ii) be made in accordance with the requirements of the Joint working 

Agreement in relation to the delivery of the Cardiff Capital Region City 
Deal   

(iii) be within approved budgets and comply with any legal requirement and     
(iv)  a full record (report) of the exercise of such powers shall be kept  by the 

City Deal Programme Director  in respect of each decision taken and  
update reports provided to the RTA  outlining decisions taken .  

 
The Programme Management group be authorised to carry out future work to inform 
the next phases of the Metro Plus programme and that allocated (budgeted) 
CCRCD feasibility funding for the Metro Plus Project be used to progress such work. 

 
KELLIE BEIRNE 
CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION DIRECTOR 
01st August 2019 

The following Appendices are attached:- 
 
Appendix A –  Metro Plus Scheme Summary 
Appendix B –  CCRCD Regional Cabinet report dated 20.11.17, Regional Transport 

Authority Terms of Reference 
Appendix C –  Wellbeing of Future Generations Evaluation 
 

The following background papers have been taken into account:- 

Cardiff Capital Region Report – “Strategic Outline Programme for Metro Plus – 
Phase 1 – Programme of Local ‘Future Mobility’ Schemes” – 18th February 2019 

Page 58



Local Authority  Site Reference Scheme Summary Current Project Phase 

WeITAG (April 2019)

Timeframe for completion of 

current WeITAG phase?

Start of Construction  Overall project build completion 

date

Actual 2019/2020 LTF/CCRCD 

Allocation funding

Project Delivery Risk Opportunity for 

Additionality? 

Opportunity for Leverage  NOTES

2019/20 LTF  2020/2021 Estimated 2021/2022 Estimated

Merthyr Pentrebach P&R New station & P&R potentially 

embedded in the centre of  

regeneration area; mixed use 

housing & business development

WeITAG Stage 1

Part of a review of the whole 

Hoover Site

Mar‐20 Apr‐21 Mar‐23 £150,000 (LTF) £500,000 (LTF) £500,000 City 

Deal

£1,850,000 £850,000 LTF, 

£1,000,000 CCRCD

High until land is secured by 

WG (but feedback is imminent 

confirmation of purchase)  

High High  Once land is secured this 

scheme could power ahead.

Torfaen Pontypool and New Inn  Park and ride  WelTAG Stage 2 / 3                 

OBC / Detailed Design and Full 

Business Case 

October 2019  Full 

Business Case Completion 

and planning secured

Oct‐19 Mar‐21 £625,000 (LTF) £875,000 LTF and £1,500,000 

CCRCD  Build phase COMPLETED

As the project stands, there is 

low risk to deliverability.  

Medium ‐ Low Medium ‐ Low (TfW in 

consultation)

Meeting with TfW to ascertain 

any of their plans for inclusion 

into the scheme. Potential for 

TfW funding to be discussed.

Blaenau Gwent Abertillery Spur Modal link to be determined 

from Abertillery to Ebbw Valley 

Line

WeITAG Stage 1           Being 

delivered by TfW as part of 

Ebbw Valley review

Jun‐19 Unknown at this stage  Unknown at this stage  £265,000 (LTF) BG Metro+ 

progress will be aligned to the 

conclusions of the EVR 

WeITAG (Mott Mac for TfW) 

due end of July 19

£600,000 LTF £635,000 City Deal 

Will depend on recommended 

mode of transport in TfW study ‐ 

potentially this might fall outside 

of the LTF

TBC £635,000 LTF, £865,000 City 

Deal

High as awaiting options 

appraisal.

High ‐ Medium  Medium ‐ Low WG study to be completed by 

end July. Need to await 

outcome before proposing 

next steps.

Vale of Glamorgan  Barry Docks Interchange  New bus station  WeITAG Stage 1  & 2          

Location proposed 

Mar‐20 2020/2021 (Estimate) Meeting arranged with TfW for 

10th July to discuss forward plan

£85,000 opportunity to spend 

CCR funding. Awaiting 

proposal in next few weeks

Potentially £300,000 LTF, 

£300,000 City Deal

TBC, Potentially £1115,000 LTF, 

£1,200,000 City Deal

There are factors that could 

influence timely delivery such 

as affordable housing 

development

High ‐ Medium  Medium  Potential for affordable 

housing scheme to be 

delivered as part of the 

project.

Caerphilly Caerphilly Bus Interchange  New rail/bus interchange WeITAG Stage 1 Feasibility 

Part of a detailed Mott 

Mcdonald commission to 

review Caerphilly town

September 2019  Report to 

cabinet on options

Stage 2 WelTAG: Sept 2019 

onwards; April 2020 start 

Design phase 

2023 (But transport element might 

be longer)

£180,000 (£120,000 VTF, 

£20,000 WG, £40,000 CCBC)  

(£0 from LTF)

Await completion of studies and 

proposals that come from them 

Potentially £300,000 LTF, 

£300,000 City Deal

TBC Potentially £1,200,000 LTF, 

£1,200,000 City Deal

A scheme will be delivered 

but the scope and timescale is 

yet to be determined

High  High  NB High priority for the LA and 

want an iconic design

Newport  Priority bus route (PBR) Bus priority corridor between 

Newport and Cardiff. 

Concentrating on St Mellons to 

Quinn Radiators site for both bus 

and Active Travel as phase 1. 

Further phase includes 600 space 

p&r at old LG site. Linked to 

accessibility to IQE. Opportunity 

for electric buses, congestion free 

bus corridor, dark fibre, realtime, 

etc

WelTAG Stage 1 and part of 2 

(Some design work) ‐ Capita 

current engaged and 

procurement imminent for 

WelTAG work

WeITAG 1 to be comissioned 

in July to be completed by 

Jan 2020

Jan or April 2021 and want 

option for phasing 

2022 £105,000 (LTF)  Potentially £ 645,000 LTF, 

£750,000 City Deal

£750,000 LTF, £750,000 City Deal A scheme will be delivered 

and high opportunity for 

additionality thinking to be 

incorporated in the scope of 

work for WeITAG1.  M4 study 

will take 6 months minimum. 

Medium

Bridgend Pyle Park and Ride  2 P&R schemes north and south 

of the station including Active 

Travel links, including digital 

infrastructre and EV 

infrastructure. Bus p&r to 

Porthcawl included in brief 

WeITAG 1 & 2 Mar‐20 Apr‐21 Sep‐21 £245,000 LTF £204,500 LTF, £200,000 City Deal  £1,050,500 LTF, £1,300,000 City 

Deal

Opportunity for additionality 

in relation to Porthcawl 

tourism, local industial estate 

and raising opportunities for 

local community

High Medium ‐ High

RCT Porth Interchange  Transport Hub, which will house a 

seven bay bus interchange, taxi 

rank and cycle racks, and have 

direct, adjacent, access to the 

station platforms and the existing 

and (phase 2 out of scope) Park 

and Ride. 

WeITAG STAGE 2  (Redstart 

consultants carrying out 

WelTAG)

Aug‐19 Autumn 2019 for p&r and 

01/04/2020 for rest of 

scheme. Land purchase and 

site clearance this financial 

year.

Apr‐21 £820,000 (LTF)  Mainly for 

enabling works this year ie 

demolition and site clearance. 

Opportunity to spend 

additional £300k City Deal 

funding this financial year.

£680,000 LTF, £500,000 City Deal £700,000 City Deal A scheme will be delivered 

and high opportunity for 

additionality as the drivers fo 

this scheme align with CCRCD 

drivers.

High High  Opportunty to accelerate 

allocation of CCRCD funding 

this year to value of £300k for 

delivery of p&r.

30 space park & ride approved for 

planning June 2019 and 

deliverable within 2019/20 

financial year. Opportunity to 

spend £300k additional funding 

from CCR in 2019/20. P& R to 

commence delivery Qtr 3 and be 

complete by end qtr 4.

APPENDIX A

P
age 59



Cardiff East Cardiff Bus Priority & 

Cycle Super Highway 

The City Centre East project will 

incorporate a series of 

sustainable and active travel 

packages that will enable 

improved bus connections in 

Cardiff City Centre, improved 

active travel infrastructure and 

pedestrian safety improvements. 

WeITAG STAGE 2 / 3 Dec‐19 Apil ‐ Sept 2020 Autumn 2021 £425,000 (LTF) Potential to 

spend minimum £85,000 City 

Deal this financial year

£740,000 LTF, £750,000 City Deal £335 LTF £665,000 City Deal Confident this scheme will be 

delivered and high 

opportunity for additionality 

around digital and LEV 

infrastructure.

High  High May be opportunty to 

accelerate allocation of CCRCD 

funding this year. Awaiting 

confirmation of how much 

hadditional funding could be 

utilised this financial year. 

Public consultation 

anticipated Spring 2020. 

Timescale for delivery needs 

to be programmed with other 

works being delivered around 

Cardiff.

Monmouth STJ South Side P&R (Phase 1)   150‐200 P&R spaces to the South  

of the station.  The existing North 

Side station car park will then be 

reconfigured to provide more 

than 40 additional bike and ride 

spaces along with safer walking 

and cycling access and a 

revamped bus‐rail interchange, 

EV charging spaces  and 

potentially an improved station 

building.

WelTAG Stage 1 & 2 being 

delivered by TfW. Masterplan 

being prepared by TfW for all 

car parks in vicinity and TfW 

including their land and 

resources within the scheme 

to maximise benefits. Design 

of South car park already 

prepared but TfW looking to 

maximise use with rest of car 

parking in area.

WelTAG 1 & 2 and 

Masterplan to be completed 

by end Sept 2019

South Side car park could be 

built within this financail year, 

however, results of 

masterplan will inform 

delivery.

01/03/2020  (For the South side Car 

Park) depending on masterplan 

completion and recommendations.

£615,000 (LTF) £400,000 LTF, £485,000 City Deal £485,000 LTF, £1,015,000 City 

Deal, £106,000 MCC, £250,000 

TfW (MINIMUM)

A standard P&R could be 

delivered quickly, but would 

not meet objectives as a stand 

alone scheme. Awarded 

contract to Amey (TfW) to 

prepare Masterplan and carry 

out WelTAG 1 & 2 by end 

September 2019. Four car 

park sites within the 

boundary, including Network 

Rail (North), Community 

Council (North), 

High  High

Country Park (East) and South 

(MCC). Footbridge over track 

to be included within scheme 

to maximise accdsibility and 

Active Travel also to be 

delivered. Ongoing 

additionality opportunities 

(renewable energy, fibre etc), 

this can be maximised by 

collaborating with TfW to 

remove restrictions in terms 

of land ownership and GRIP 

process.

P
age 60



Page 1 of 9 

REGIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY TERMS OF REFERENCE 

REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION PROGRAMME DIRECTOR 

AGENDA ITEM: 9 

Reason for this Report 

1. To agree the Terms of Reference for the Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority;
and

2. To establish the Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority as a sub-committee of the
Regional Cabinet.

Background 

3. The JWA, in relation to the delivery of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, was signed
and the Regional Cabinet established on March 1st, 2017. The JWA defines the City
Deal as “the agreement between the Welsh Government, the UK Government and the
Councils dated 15 March 2016”, known as the Heads of Terms.

4. The Heads of Terms (schedule 7 to the JWA) paragraph 24 states:

“In addition to this investment [Metro] the Cardiff Capital Region will establish a new
non-statutory Regional Transport Authority to co-ordinate transport planning and
investment, in partnership with the Welsh Government. The Cardiff Capital Region
Transport Authority will be responsible for:

• pooled local transport resources;
• regional planning for the local transport network;
• working with Transport for Wales to ensure objectives for transport investment are

aligned;
• exploring the creation of a single integrated ticketing platform for public transport

across the Cardiff Capital Region;
• working in partnership with Welsh Government to define the priorities of the South

East Wales Metro concept and to support its delivery; and
• working in partnership with the Welsh Government to promote the development of

integrated aviation routes from Cardiff Airport and St Athan Enterprise Zone, to
deliver economic benefit.”

5. Related to the establishment of sub-committees and the delegation of powers the JWA
states:

APPENDIX B

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CABINET 

JOINT CABINET MEETING 20 NOVEMBER 2017 

Page 61



Page 2 of 9 
 

10.18    Joint Committee May Delegate 

10.18.1 The Joint Committee may delegate any of the powers which are 
conferred on them under this Agreement: 
(a) to such person, sub-committee or group; 
(b) to such an extent; 
(c) in relation to such matters; and 
(d) on such terms and conditions, as they think fit from time to 

time. 

10.18.2 The Joint Committee may allow that such delegation shall 
automatically authorise further delegation of the Joint Committee's 
powers by any person to whom they are delegated provided that the 
Joint Committee specifically states this within such delegation 
authority. 

10.18.3   The Joint Committee may revoke any delegation in whole or part, 
or alter its terms and conditions at any time. 

10.19   Sub-Committees 

10.19.1 The Joint Committee shall establish as soon as reasonably 
practicable the following sub-committees or groups:  
(e) Programme Management Office; 
(f) Programme Board; 
(g) Regional Transport Authority; 
(h) Regional Business Organisation; 
(i) Regional Skills and Employment Board; and 
(j) Regional Economic Growth Partnership. 

10.19.2 The Councils shall work together to create and agree terms of 
reference for, to the extent permissible by law, a Joint Audit 
Committee and a Joint Scrutiny Committee. 

10.19.3 It is acknowledged and agreed by the Councils that the sub-
committees or groups referred to in Clauses 10.19.1 and 10.19.2: 

(k) shall undertake a number of functions including but not 
limited to audit, scrutiny and/or consultation services 
pursuant to their terms of reference; and 

(l) shall not have any delegated decision making powers 
(unless otherwise expressly granted by the Joint 
Committee).  

10.19.4 Sub-committees or groups to which the Joint Committee delegates 
any of its powers must follow procedures which are based as far as 
they are applicable on those provisions of this Agreement which 
govern the taking of decisions by the Joint Committee. 

10.19.5 The Joint Committee shall establish the membership, rules of 
procedure or terms of reference for all or any such sub-committees 
or groups to, amongst other matters, clarify their respective role and 
scope of delegation which shall be approved by the Joint Committee. 

10.19.6 The Joint Committee may create additional sub-committees or sub-
groups as it sees fit from time to time. 

 

Page 62



Page 3 of 9 
 

Issues 

6. The Regional Transport Authority has met in ‘Shadow’ form and now seek to be 
formally established, in accordance with the JWA, by means of approval of their Terms 
of Reference by the Regional Cabinet.  
 

7. The proposed Terms of Reference are contained in Appendix 1 to this report and 
define the role and responsibilities of the Regional Transport Authority and the rules 
and procedures to which it must adhere. 
 

8. The proposed Terms of Reference also details the delegated powers, conferred on 
the Regional Cabinet by the JWA, which are now proposed to be delegate to the 
Regional Transport Authority. 
 

9. Whilst paragraph 24 of the Heads of Terms is widely worded and goes beyond City 
Deal wider investment fund matters, the Regional Cabinet cannot set up a sub-
committee, which has wider powers than the Regional Cabinet itself enjoys. Further, 
the funding that can be delegated to the sub-committee to carry out its functions is 
limited to the funding available to the Regional Cabinet (in particular the HMT, Council 
Contributions and Annual budget - or more accurately part thereof). 
  

10. At this stage it is therefore proposed to set up a Regional Transport Authority whose 
delegated functions include the preparation of regional transport strategies, policies, 
and proposals on the understanding that if thought appropriate further delegations 
could be sought from the Councils to the Regional Cabinet (and in turn the RTA).  
 

Financial Implications 
 
11. As outlined in the report, the Regional Transport Authority (RTA) has met in shadow 

form and a budget of £99,066 has been allocated from the Wider Investment Fund 
‘Top-Slice’ to fund its work in 2017/18.  Once formally established, Regional Cabinet’s 
annual budget process will need to take account of the RTA’s annual work programme 
to ensure that an appropriate level of resources are allocated to support the work of 
this sub-committee each year. 
   

12. Section 12 of the Joint Working Agreement (JWA) approved by each of the ten Cardiff 
Capital Region City Deal Councils, details the ‘Commitment of the Council and 
Contributions’.  In summary, this outlines the following funding contributions that will 
be available to Regional Cabinet to carry out those functions delegated to it under the 
JWA: 
 

1) Annual Budget – provided by each Council on a proportionate basis; 
2) HMT Contribution – provided by Welsh Government over a period of twenty 

years and being the subject of both five yearly Gateways Reviews and Welsh 
Government Funding Terms & Conditions; 

3) Council Contributions – up to £120 million provided by the Councils on a 
proportionate basis subject to the overall Affordability Envelope. 

 
13. Therefore, in delegating any of its functions to the RTA, Regional Cabinet will need to 

give due consideration to existing funding limitations placed on it by the JWA.  
However, it is a matter for Regional Cabinet to request additional funding, (seek an 
increase to the approved Council Contribution), which would be a matter reserved 
to each council for approval. 
 

Legal Implications 
 
14. The Cardiff Capital Region Joint Cabinet has the power to establish sub committees. 

As stated in the body of the report, the Joint Working Agreement provides that the 

Page 63



Page 4 of 9 
 

Regional Cabinet shall establish a Sub-Committee or group, referred to as the 
Regional Transport Authority. 
 

15. It is a matter for the Regional Cabinet to establish the membership, and terms of 
reference of the Sub-Committee and in such terms to clarify the role and scope of 
delegation. In terms of the extent of the delegation proposed reference is made to 
paragraphs 9 and 10 of the report.  
 

16. The terms of reference set out the important proposals as to, the functions delegated, 
membership, quorum and voting rights (which voting rights mirror the JWA).  Regional 
Cabinet are requested to consider if these proposals meet their requirements. 
 

17. The RTA sub committee should take appropriate legal and other advice in respect of 
any proposed decisions it wishes to take as regards the matters delegated to it.  
 

18. This report focuses on the establishment, by the Regional Cabinet of the RTA Sub-
Committee. Separate to this matter the 10 authorities may wish to consider what action 
if any,  they wish to take in respect of the Agreement concluded on 1.9.2004, which 
served to establish a joint committee in respect of certain prescribed transportation 
functions. The Sub-Committee being referred to The South East Wales Transport 
Alliance. 
 

19. General advice  
In considering this matter regard should be had, amongst other matters, to: 
 
(I) The Councils’ duties under the Well –being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
and; 
(ii)  Public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 (including specific Welsh public 
sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties Councils must in making decisions have 
due regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, (2) advance equality 
of opportunity and (3) foster good relations on the basis of protected characteristics. 
Protected characteristics are: a. Age; b. Gender reassignment; c. Sex; d. Race – 
including ethnic or national origin, colour or nationality; e. Disability; f. Pregnancy and 
maternity; g. Marriage and civil partnership; h. Sexual orientation; I. Religion or belief 
– including lack of belief. 
 

Equalities Impact Statement 
 
20. See Legal Implications above. 

 
Reasons for Recommendations 
 
21. To establish the Regional Transport Authority as a sub-committee of the Regional 

Cabinet. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that the Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet: 
 

1) Agree the Terms of Reference for a Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority as 
detailed in Appendix 1 to this report; and 
 

2) Establish the Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority as a sub-committee of the 
Joint Cabinet 

 
Sheila Davies 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal Programme Director 
14th November 2017 

Page 64



Page 5 of 9 
 

The following Appendix is attached: 

Appendix 1:  Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority Terms of Reference 
 

Background papers - Joint Working Agreement in relation to the delivery of 
the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal  

Page 65



Page 6 of 9 
 

Appendix 1: Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority Terms of Reference 
 
Governance Type The Regional Transport Authority is being established by the Regional 

Cabinet as a Sub-Committee pursuant of section 10.19 of the Joint 
Working Agreement in relation to the delivery of the Cardiff Capital 
Region City Deal (JWA). 
 
Specifically, the Regional Cabinet will establish a new non-statutory 
Regional Transport Authority (RTA). 
 

Delegated Powers The Regional Transport Authority shall not have any delegated 
decision making powers unless expressly granted by the Regional 
Cabinet. 
 
The Regional Cabinet have currently granted delegated decision 
making powers to the Regional Transport Authority as detailed in the 
‘Functions’ section below. 
 
Any member of the RTA Sub-Committee may request that any matter 
delegated to the Sub-Committee is referred to the Regional Cabinet 
for decision 
 

Procedures The Regional Transport Authority in its meetings and in exercising any 
of its decision making powers must follow procedures which are 
based, as far as they are applicable, on those provisions detailed in 
the Joint Working Agreement which govern the Regional Cabinet or to 
the extent the provisions of the Joint Working Agreement are silent   
must follow the Committee Meeting and other relevant Procedure 
Rules, standing order and polices of the Accountable Body.  
 

Accountable to The Regional Transport Authority will be accountable to the Regional 
Cabinet. 
 

Reporting In respect of the Objectives listed the Regional Transport Authority 
can prepare reports for information or to provide recommendations to 
the Regional Cabinet. 
 
On delegated matters the Regional Transport Authority can prepare 
reports for consideration and make decisions. 
 

Membership RTA membership will include: 
 

1. Two members of the Regional Cabinet, nominated from time 
to time by the Regional Cabinet, who will act as Chair and 
Vice Chair of the sub-committee; and the Executive Member 
for the time being with responsibility for Transport from each 
of the ten Local Authorities in the Cardiff Capital Region. 

2. Each Council shall be entitled from time to time to appoint a 
deputy for its representative but such deputy (in each case) 
shall only be entitled to speak and vote at meetings of the 
Joint Committee in the absence of his or her corresponding 
principal 

 
Note: the Chair and/or Vice Chair can also act as the Executive 
Member for Transport of their Local Authority 
A representative so appointed shall hold office until  
 

Page 66



Page 7 of 9 
 

(A) the member ceases to hold the office referred to in paragraph 1 
or 2 above, 
(B) the member dies, 
(C)  the member resigns, 
(D) the member becomes disqualified 
(E)  the member ceases to be a member of the Council he or she 
represents or  
(F) The Council, which the member represents, has decided that 
another member should act in his place,  
whichever may first happen. 
 
Any member of the RTA Sub-Committee may by written request to 
the Regional Programme Director request that a matter be 
considered at the next meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 
 Any member of the Sub-Committee may, where he or she views that 
a matter requires urgent consideration, request to the Chairperson at 
the start of the Sub-Committee meeting that such urgent item is 
added to the agenda, but its inclusion will be a matter for the 
Chairperson to decide.  
 
Third parties  
Transport users, industry, partner representatives and appropriate 
third parties may be invited by a member or members of the RTA 
Sub-Committee to attend meetings as an observer and shall be 
entitled to take part in such RTA sub committee meetings at the 
discretion of the Chairperson.  Such observers will not have voting 
rights and will be considered as members of the public for the 
purposes of the sub committee’s procedural rules.  
 

Voting/Agreement For delegated matters - as per the Regional Cabinet. 
Decisions  will be taken by majority vote  
For avoidance of doubt each of the ten constituent Local Authorities 
is entitled to one vote only and it is agreed that the Chairperson shall 
not exercise his or her casting vote. 
 
If, at a meeting of the Sub-Committee, a matter is not determined 
(the vote is tied)  that matter ("RTA Unresolved Matter") shall be 
deferred for consideration at the next RTA  Sub-Committee meeting, 
which shall be convened within ten (10) Business Days of the  
meeting at which the tied vote was taken. If at the reconvened RTA 
Sub-Committee meeting the RTA Unresolved Matter is not 
determined, the RTA Unresolved Matter shall become a matter 
reserved to the CCCD Regional Cabinet and shall be deferred for 
consideration by the CCRCD Regional Cabinet.   
 

Quorum The quorum necessary for a RTA sub Committee meeting shall be 
an elected member or appropriate deputy appointed from at least 
seven (7) of the Councils comprising the CCRCD, present at the 
relevant time. 
 

Frequency The Regional Transport Authority will meet quarterly or more 
frequently as required to complete business.  

Allowances No allowances will be paid. 
 

Servicing Within the resources made available by the Regional Cabinet for the 
RTA sub committee’s work, the Regional Office will organise 
appropriate servicing for Board meetings. 

Page 67



Page 8 of 9 
 

The Regional Programme Director shall ensure that all agendas and 
relevant information in relation to the Sub-Committee meeting are 
circulated in a timely manner and in any event in accordance with 
legislative requirements. 
 
A Regional Officer Transport Group, (a non - decision making group) 
comprising of one nominated officer from each authority, will provide 
support to the Regional Transport Authority and the Reginal Office 
on transport matters.  Each authority shall be entitled from time to 
time to appoint a deputy for its representative but such deputy (in 
each case) shall only be entitled to attend meetings in the absence 
of his or her corresponding principal. .  
Each authority will be responsible for funding all costs associated 
with its officers’ attendance at such Regional Officer Transport Group 
and any associated work undertaken, unless prior arrangements 
have been approved by the Regional Cabinet.  
 

Resources 
 
 
 

The resources for servicing and undertaking of functions will be 
limited to that made available within the City Deal and allocated by 
the Regional Cabinet to the RTA Sub-Committee to discharge its 
functions. 
 
The budget allocated to the RTA Sub-Committee to discharge its 
functions shall be as determined, from time to time, by the Regional 
Cabinet. At all times decisions taken by the RTA sub committee must 
be within the approved budget set by the Regional Cabinet, including 
any reallocation of external funding received by the Regional 
Cabinet.  
 

Objectives Subject to funding, to facilitate the City Deal by: 
 
1. Developing and coordinating proposals for an integrated regional 

transport strategy that supports the strategic economic and spatial 
aspirations of the City Deal and Cardiff Capital Region (CCR). 

2. Working in partnership with Welsh Government and Transport for 
Wales to define and develop the priorities of the South East Wales 
Metro concept and support its delivery, including the development 
of a single integrated ticketing platform for public transport across 
the region. 

3. In respect of the Capital Region considering proposals for: 
• enhancing transport connectivity in support of economic 

development and land use planning including the promotion of 
integrated aviation routes. 

• ensuring that safety, sustainability, social inclusion, health and 
the environment are considered in transport policies and 
programmes, meeting the requirements of the Well-being of 
Future Generations Act. 

• pursuing high quality standards for transport utilising best 
practice and innovation; and to identify and monitor outputs 
and outcomes.   
 

Functions 
delegated to the 
RTA sub 
committee 
 
 

Subject to funding, to facilitate the City Deal by: 
 
a. preparing regional strategies, including a Regional Transport Plan, 

comprising transportation policies, proposals and programmes, in 
support of the aim and objectives set out above for submission to 
the Regional Cabinet for approval; 

Page 68



Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. working with Welsh Government, Transport for Wales, user 
groups, industry and other stakeholders to coordinate transport 
planning and operations across the region on behalf of the 
Regional Cabinet; 

c. developing transport Candidate Schemes for assessment under 
the Appraisal Framework; 

d. providing advice and observations related to Candidate Schemes, 
with transport implications, submitted to the Regional Cabinet by 
other bodies. 

 
Sub-Groups The Regional Transport Authority, can establish sub-groups or Task 

& Finish Groups for any matters that they consider would be better 
dealt with in this manner, but shall not be entitled to delegate any of 
its decision making functions to any such sub group or task and 
finish group.   
 

Version & Review Version 1 – Prepared October 2017 
Review - To be reviewed March each year (unless agreed 
otherwise). 
 

 

Page 69



Name of the Officer completing the evaluation: 

Clare Cameron 

Phone no: 07976 708539 
E-mail: clare.cameron@cardiff.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal 

To provide members with an update on the strategic programme of the 
10 ‘Future Mobility’ Metro Plus Phase 1 projects that were approved in 
principle by Regional Cabinet on 18th February 2019.  

Proposal: Metro Plus Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed: 25 July 2019 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

Setting up Governance arrangements around 
progress of Metro Plus schemes within City Deal 
and the targets set around GVA, jobs and leverage – 
is our key means of securing greater prosperity. 
Managing & reporting progress in this way 
contributes to a growing sense of self awareness. 

Proposals to improve progress against each of the 
projects currently in progress – are set out in the 
report. This report does not seek to simply report 
progress – but to address the actions needed to 
drive it. 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g. climate 
change) 

New infrastructure and enhancement of provision 
will open up journey alternatives for commuters, 
business users and leisure users. Instead of 
automatically undertaking a journey by car, the 
Metro Plus Programme will promote and provide an 
alternative thereby encouraging modal shift to public 
transport for a range of journey types.  

This activity will be driven up in future. In addition as 
physical infrastructure schemes enter delivery – 
more comprehensive assessments will need to be 
carried out in full.  

Future Generations Assessment 

APPENDIX C

P
age 70



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

This could help to reduce the number of car journeys 
undertaken, helping to reduce congestion and 
improve other environmental factors such as an 
improvement in air quality.  

The development of new transport schemes which 
can utilise new technologies such as electronic 
charging points and electronic vehicles etc within its 
operation and design will also allow formation of new 
industries to supply these services. A report 
prepared by Cenex demonstrates the need for a 
Programme of Electric Vehicle Infrastructure within 
the Programme and has proposed the level of 
infrastructure likely to be required up to 2030. The 
delivery of this programme will seek to expand on 
this provision for the region as a whole, which will 
help combat climate change.  

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 
 

A potential reduction in car trips may make the roads 
safer, thus opening them up for more Active Travel 
journey opportunities. There is also likely to be 
growth in active travel journeys undertaken to 
interchanges to access the Metro Plus Programme 
of schemes.  

The potential to increase  active travel journeys 
could have associated health benefits leading to cost 
savings across a range of health service provisions 
(a 2012 meta-analysis estimated physical inactivity 
to be responsible for 5.3 million (of 57 million) deaths 
worldwide, similar to the burden of tobacco smoking 
and obesity11).  

 

P
age 71



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

There can also be economic benefits for the region 
from increasing active travel. It has been quoted in a 
recent report by the ‘Transport Fit for Future 
Generations Report’ that ‘expanding the investment 
programme in Active Travel out to the whole Cardiff 
Capital Region would cost approx. £290 million but 
would result in economic benefits of £2.5bn over 20 
years, delivering a 19% and 82% increase in walking 
and cycling trips respectively’.  

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected 
 

The programme will greatly assist in providing the 
right infrastructure to improve connectivity by means 
of good transport links. Those schemes where new 
links or improvements in corridors are to be 
implemented are likely to have the largest benefit for 
example, Abertillery Interchange. 

 All of the combined improvements in interchanges, 
Park and Ride and bus priority will assist in creating 
a seamless network allowing ease of transfer 
between modes. This will facilitate ease of access 
for communities across south east Wales, for those 
with and without access to a private car thereby 
improving connectivity to a range of services. 

The Metro Plus Programme will also improve 
connectivity to the South Wales Metro, permitting 
regional connectivity throughout south east Wales 
and further beyond.  

Currently most travel-to-work trips into Cardiff are 
made by car (58%), while the proportion of 
sustainable travel-to work trips diminishes with the 

A greater contribution will be made to this by the 
aforementioned data capability, sectoral analysis 
and place assessments. 

P
age 72



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

distance of commuting. The Metro Plus Programme 
provides an alternative for access into areas such as 
Cardiff from all areas of south east Wales helping to 
facilitate modal shift. This could lead to journey time 
savings on the road network across south east 
Wales helping businesses and promoting economic 
development. Journey time savings could also be 
achieved for users of the public transport network, 
as the Metro Plus Programme promotes the co-
locating of modes via seamless interchanges. 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 
 

The Metro Plus Programme includes investment 
across the whole of south east Wales and it will 
improve the quality of the region as a whole. 
Therefore it is likely to encourage new inward 
investment as businesses have access to a wide 
pool of potential resources that can easily travel 
around the region and wider, to access new job and 
training opportunities.  

Develop the legacy impact of the event, sustaining 
new connections, sharing great practice and 
potentially securing propositions and deals that 
support economic growth. 

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation 
 

Providing new and improved sustainable transport 
infrastructure across the Region will help increase 
the means of access to sport and recreation.  

All signage will be bilingual and buses are already 
equipped with AudioVisual (AV) for those vehicles 
younger than 2012 to enable them to deliver 
bilingual messaging. 

 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 

City Deal is about delivering as far as possible 
across 10 LAs and a population of 1.5m people. It is 

 

P
age 73



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

 about economic gains – but importantly how this will 
convert as tools for improving people’s lives.  

The programme will support a more productive 
economy through an increase in access to the South 
Wales transport network. This will allow for 
individual, households, public sector and business to 
grasp new opportunities, from the improved access 
provided by new and improved transport options.  

Transport improvements that improve access 
throughout the south east Wales region will help 
increase the skills base of the labour market, 
through providing means of access to new 
educational, employment, healthcare and training 
opportunities.  

The Metro Plus Programme will deliver direct 
transport improvements into those areas where 
evidence shows high rates of claiming job seekers 
allowance, allowing access to sustainable public 
transport for those seeking employment, increasing 
their chance of gaining employment through access 
to wider employment markets. This will increase 
their personal prosperity and the economic 
prosperity of the area within which they live as they 
spend their income on local goods and services. 

 

 

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritized the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

P
age 74



Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Balancing short term 
need with long term 
and planning for the 
future 

The Metro Plus Programme assists Government with 
delivering on the four Grand Challenges within the UK 
Industrial Strategy - Future of Mobility; Artificial Intelligence 
and Big Data; Clean Growth and Meeting the Needs of an 
Ageing Society. 

Being a programme that is focused on the provision and 
improvement of sustainable transport, it helps in particular 
to achieve the goals of a ‘globally responsible Wales’, ‘A 
Wales of cohesive communities’, ‘a healthier Wales’ and ‘a 
prosperous Wales’. 

The Metro Plus Programme will provide increase network 
capacity, providing new and improved transport facilities, 
increasing capacity at interchanges across the rail network 
along with providing new capacity along transport corridors 
such as between Newport and Cardiff and the Abertillery to 
Ebbw Valley Railway line. 

In developing the programme long terms trends have been 
analysed. For example, the need to provide for electric 
powered vehicles at all sites with the programme has been 
investigated. A separate report produced by Cenex has 
considered how electric vehicle charging can be provided, 
what type of provision is required and the operating model 
for implementation. The Metro Plus programme also looks 
to address future trends such as population increases and 
decreases, providing increased public transport capacity 
and helping to prevent out-migration from some 
communities through improved access.  

 

P
age 75



Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Working together 
with other partners to 
deliver objectives  

The Metro Plus Programme has been formed through 
collaborative working by ten local authorities (Caerphilly 
CBC, Cardiff CC, Bridgend CBC, Newport CC, Vale of 
Glamorgan Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC, Monmouthshire CC, Torfaen CBC, Blaenau 
Gwent CBC). The Well-being objectives of each of the local 
authorities have been considered when developing the 
programme.  

The inclusion of EV Charging is also supported by WG and 
work has been undertaken by Cenex to assess the demand 
up to 2030 at the locations identified.  

Public consultation will take place through the WelTAG 
process as each scheme develops through the WelTAG 
stages, and, as the proposal includes all schemes 
identified within individual LA LDPs, the public will have 
been made aware of the proposals and would have 
already had an opportunity through the LDP consultation 
process to consider the principle of individual schemes. 

Involving those with 
an interest and 
seeking their views 

The Metro Plus Programme has been formed through 
collaborative working by ten local authorities (Caerphilly 
CBC, Cardiff CC, Bridgend CBC, Newport CC, Vale of 
Glamorgan Council, Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC, Monmouthshire CC, Torfaen CBC, Blaenau 
Gwent CBC). The Well-being objectives of each of the local 
authorities have been considered when developing the 
programme.  

Cenex were commissioned to consider EV Charging to be 
included within the Programme and to assess likely 
demand up to 2030.  

REDSTART were commissioned to appraise the 
Programme, and the is working with TfW to develop the 
Programme and ensure that the proposal fits with TfW’s 
vision and Metro Programme. 

 

More needs to be done to develop engagement platforms 
– beyond formal partnerships – to reach communities, 
hard to reach groups and those who currently have a 
limited understanding of City Deal. Improving social 
media, web presence and marketing materials will 
increasingly make a contribution to this. 
The RTA will ensure that all partners are included whilst 
delivering the Programme. 

P
age 76



Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Putting resources 
into preventing 
problems occurring 
or getting worse 

The Metro Plus Programme is designed to prevent further 
environmental damage from transport through the 
promotion and development of a sustainable transport 
network.  

Population in some communities is projected to decline 
(such as some valleys communities, where younger 
members of the community leave to seek job opportunities 
in larger towns and cities). The Metro Plus Programme 
linking into the wider Metro network will provide an effective 
transport system, connecting major towns and cities across 
Wales for those communities where population is declining. 
This may permit people to stay within the community within 
which they have grown up, commuting to and from 
employment as an efficient transport network is available, 
rather than needing to relocate to seek employment. 

This will be an increasing focus of scheme and 
programme delivery. 

Considering impact 
on all wellbeing 
goals together and 
on other bodies 

The Metro Plus Programme has been developed with 
consideration to a wide range of contextual factors. 
Strategic fit of the programme has been considered along 
with a number of other wider issues such as carbon 
reduction.  

In terms of the programme impact on local authority 
wellbeing goals, a positive impact can be seen.  In 
particular the Metro Plus Programme will help to achieve 
goals that aim to tackle poverty and deprivation, improve 
access to skills, improve employment opportunities and 
provide improved infrastructure and healthier communities. 

 

 
 
 

P
age 77



3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 
evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Age The Metro Plus Programme will help to 

achieve goals that aim to tackle poverty and 
deprivation, improve access to skills, 
improve employment opportunities and 
provide improved infrastructure and 
healthier communities for all characteristics 
as all infrastructure included within the 
projects will be designed in accordance with 
current inclusive design.  

None arising at this time.  

Disability As above As above  

Gender 
reassignment 

As above As above  

Marriage or civil 
partnership 

As above As above  

Pregnancy or 
maternity 

As above   

Race As above   

Religion or Belief As above   

P
age 78



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Sex As above  .  

Sexual Orientation As above   

 

Welsh Language 

As above Not at this time but the situation will be 
kept under review. 

 

 
4. Safeguarding & Corporate Parenting.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?   
 
 Describe any positive impacts your 

proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  Not directly relevant –however, building the 
future economy should have a profoundly 
positive impact on ability to safeguard the 
future of our residents 

  

Corporate Parenting  Not directly relevant – however building 
strength in the economy should create 
opportunities for all of the young people 
entrusted in our care 

  

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

• Evidence and input contributed by theme leads 
• Outcomes of assessments such as audit reports 
• Delivery against targets set out in individual business cases/ approved project documentation  

P
age 79



6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 

 
The areas requiring attention and focus are set out and follow-up actions will be assessed and monitored ongoing through the quarterly reporting mechanism. . 

 
7. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 

evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review. 
 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  Delivery of schemes  

 

 

 

P
age 80


	Agenda
	1 Regional Transport Authority - 1st August 2019 at 9.30am.  Council Chamber, Bridgend County Borough Council.
	Item 3 - Draft RTA Minutes 05.03.19
	Item 4 - Common Assessment Framework
	Item 4 - Common Assessment Framework Report
	Item 4 - Common Assessment Framework Appendix 1
	Item 4 - Common Assessment Framework Appendix 1
	Item 4 - Common Assessment Framework Appendix 1 2

	Item 4 - Common Assessment Framework Appendix 2

	Item 5 - Metro Plus Package of Studies
	Item 5 - Metro Plus Package of Studies Report FINAL D
	Item 5 - Metro Plus Package Appendix 1

	Item 6 - Metro Plus
	Item 6 - Metro Plus Report
	Item 6 - Metro Plus Appendix A
	Item 6 - Metro Plus Appendix B
	Item 6 - Metro Plus Appendix C



